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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of

BLC Bank S.A.L

Beirut — Lebanon

Adverse Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of BLC Group S.A L. (the "Group"), which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022 and the consolidated statement of
profit or Joss, consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes

to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for Adverse Opinjon section
of our report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements do not present fairly the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2022, and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Adverse Opinion

1. Asdisclosed in note 1.3.2 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, the Group's functional
currency is the Lebanese Pound which is the currency of a hyperinflationary economy and the Group has
not applied the requirements of IAS 29 "Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies” in the
preparation of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022. Had the Group applied the
requirements of 1AS 29, many elements and disclosures in the accompanying financial statements,
including the comparative financia) statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, would have been
significantly impacted. The effects on the consolidated financial statements arising from this departure have
not been determined. The opinion in the prior year was also modified in respect of this matter.

2. As disclosed in note 3.1 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, the Group’s
transactions and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies have been translated to
functional currency (i.e. Lebanese Pounds) in accordance with the accounting policy on foreign currency
transactions detailed in note 3 of the consolidated financial statements, at the official exchange rate
published at the end of the reporting period which significantly varies from the several exchange rates that
have emerged since the start of the economic crisis.

As per IAS 21 "The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates", when several exchange rates are
available, the rate 10 be used is that at which the future cash flows represented by the transaction or balance
could have been settled if those cash flows had occurred at the measurement date. Had the Group applied
the requirements of 1AS 21 many of the elements of the accompanying consolidated financial statements,
including disclosures, would have been significantly impacted. The effects on the consolidated financial
statements of this departure have not been determined. The opinion in the prior year was also modified in
respect of this martter.
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Basis for Adverse Opinion (continued)

3. Note | to the consolidated financial statements indicates that there is currently a high degree of
uncertainty surrounding the Lebanese banking industry and Lebanese economy as a whole, triggered by the
severe financial crisis and unprecedented economic downtum. The magnitude of the possible adverse
effects on the Lebanese economy and the banking sector, remains unknown and gave rise to unusual
practices that are not considered to be in the normal course of business in a non-crisis environment as
disclosed under Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

The audit evidence available to us to confirm the appropriaieness of preparing the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis was limited due to the severity of the uncertainties noted above as
applicable to the Group and within the Lebanese banking sector as a whole resulting from the overwhelming
systemic risk which could impact the assessment of solvency risk, liquidity and funding risk, currency risk,
credit risk and profitability and the related future actions and mitigation plans and factors.

This situation indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern and in the absence of any alternative evidence availabie to us, we
were unable to form a view as to the applicability of the going concern basis, the circumstances of which,
together with the effect on the consolidated financial statements should this basis be inappropriate, could
result in the Group being unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business. The consolidated financial statements do not adequately disclose this fact. The opinion in the prior
year was also modified in respect of this matter.

4. Cash and balances with the Central Bank of Lebanon, investment securities at amortized cost which are
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at LBP 2,999 billion and LBP 1,339 billion
respectively (2021: LBP 2,403 billion and LBP 1,531 billion), include balances held with the Central Bank
of Lebanon, Lebanese government bonds and Lebanese treasury bills of LBP 3,317 billion, LBP 743 billion
and LBP 42 billion respectively {2021; LBP 3,180 billion and LBP 743 billion and LBP117 billion
respectively). Management has not stated these balances net of allowances for expected credit losses which
take into account the significant deterioration in credit quality since initial recognition which has arisen as
a result of the continuing economic crisis in Lebanon and the government default on Eurobonds, which
constitutes a departure from [FRSs. We were unable to determine the adjustments necessary to these
amounts. The opinion in the prior year was also modified in respect of this matter.

5. Loans and advances to customers and deposits with banks and financial institutions which are carried in
the consolidated staternent of financial position at LBP 565 billion and LBP 32 billion respectively (2021:
LBP 983 billion and LBP 50 billion respectively) include loans and advances to customers, balances with
banks and financial institutions originated by the private sector of LBP 563 billion and LBP 6 billion
respectively (2021: LBP 983 billion and LBP 7 billion respectively) which are concentrated in Lebanon.
Management has not stated these balances net of allowances for expected credit losses which take into
account the full impact of the ecenomic crisis and political turmoil in Lebanon, which constitutes a
departure from IFRSs. We were unabie to determine the adiustments necessary 10 these amounts. The
opinion in the prior year was also modified in respect of this matter.
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Basis for Adverse Opinion (continued)

6. Provisions are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at LBP 57 billion (2021: LBP
34 billion). The assumptions used In calculating and estimating these provisions are subject to high
uncertainties due to the prevailing financial and economic situation in Lebanon as mentioned in note | to
the consolidated financial statements, that expose the Group to increased litigation and regulatory risks,
Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments to the calculation of these estimates
WEre necessary.

Moreover, it includes a provision for expected credit losses on financial guarantees and other commitments
of LBP 825 million {2021: LBP 1 billion). Management has not stated the aliowance for expected credit
losses on financial guarantees and other commitments by taking into account the full impact of the economic
crisis and political turmeil in Lebanon, which constitutes a departure from IFRSs. We were unable to
determine the adjustments necessary to this amount. The opinion in the prior year was also modified in
respect of this matter.

7. Investment securities at fair value through profit or loss and investment securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income whijch are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at LBP
68 billion and LBP 14 billicn respectively (2021: LBP 54 billion and LBP 19 billion respectively), include
investment securities of LBP 17 billion and LBP 14 billion respectively (2021: LBP 43 billion and LBP 19
billion respectively), which are issued by the Lebanese government and private entities domiciled in
Lebanon.

Management has stated the aforementioned financial assets at fair value by using inputs into the
determination of fair value which are not indicative of economic reality and market conditions existing in
Lebanon at the reporting date, which constitutes a departure from IFRSs. We were unable to determine the
adjustments necessary to these amounts. The opinion in the prior year was atso modified in respect of this
matter.

8. Management has not disclosed the fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial labilities at’
amortized cost, which constitutes a departure from IFRSs. We were unable to determine the fair value of
the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities at amortized cost which should be disclosed. The
opinion in the prior year was also modified in respect of this matter.

9, We did not receive up to this report’s date sufficient direct confirmation of balances related to customers’
accounts and loans and advances to customers as at 31 December 2022 (notes 19 and 8). In addition, we
were upable 1o verify by altemative means the balances of unconfirmed accounts included in the statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2022 and accordingly, we were unable to satisfy ourselves as to the
accuracy of the reponed balances as at that date.
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Basis for Adverse Opinion (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibjlities for the Audit of the consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the Code of Ethics
of the Lebanese Association of Certified Public Accountants that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our adverse opinion.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021 were
audited by DFK Fiduciaire du Moyen-Orient and Deloitte & Touche, whose auditor’s report dated August
5, 2022 expresses an adverse opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
andit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022. Except for the matters
described in the Basis for adverse opinion section of our report, we have determined that there are no other
key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the information
included in the Group's Annual Report other than the consolidated financial staterents and our auditor's
report thereon. The Group's Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor's report.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, cur responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with JFRSs, and tor such internal control as management deterniines is necessary to enable
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement. whether
due to fraud or error.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to geing concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a puarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial staterments, whether
due 1o fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain sudit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
aterial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting pelicies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

« (Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materiai uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. ]f we conclude that a
material uncerainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up 1¢ the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group 1o cease {o conlinue as a going concern.

+ Obtain sufticient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

« Provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and 1o communicate with them all relatienships and other matters
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¢ FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit,

Beirut, Lebanon
July 5, 2023

DF Fidﬂ/ \ oyen-Orient Mazars Saade

/%M%
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BLC BANK S.A.L
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Assets

Cash and balances with the Central Bank of Lebanon
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Loan to a bank

Leoans and advances to customers

Financial assets at faic value through profit or loss
Investiment securities

Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
Right-of-use assets

Property and equipment

Intangible assets

Other assets

Assets held for sale

Total Assets

Liabilities

Deposits from banks and financial institutions
Customers’ accounts

Borrowings from Central Bank of Lebanon
Lease liabilities

Other liabilities
Provisions

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale
Total Liabilities

Equity

Capital

Shareholders’ cash contribution to capital

Preferred shares

Treasury shares

Non-distributable reserves

(Accumulated losses) retained earnings

Cumulative change in fair value of investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income

Net loss for the year

Equity attributable to Equity holders of the Bank

Non-controlling interests
Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

Financial instruments with off-balance sheet risks:

Letters of guarantee and standby letiers of credit
Forward exchange contracts
Fiduciary accounis

Notes December 31,
2022 2021
LBP'00O LBP'000
5 2,998,685.,432 2,403,406,940
6 31,648,985 50,094,946
7 - 691,446
8 564,687,329 982,900,379
10 68,061,104 53,727,295
9 1,353,056,865 1,549,941,737
12 61,534,981 62,387,713
13 6,057,203 8,159,620
14 78,581,310 84,597,026
15 1,719,184 3,178,780
16 51,050,165 59,356,918
5,215,082,558 5,258.,442,803
17 - 21,921,318
5,215,082,558 5,280,364,121
18 102,325,165 72,415,663
19 4,253,465,754 4,222,461,232
20 182,977,458 219,365,528
14 7,127,008 8,824,282
21 65,189,674 77,579,784
22 57,523,567 34,376,827
4,668,608,626 4,635,023,316
17 - 776,065
4,668,608,626 4,635,799,381
23 214,000,000 214,000,000
23 141,492,443 141,492,443
24 152,786,633 152,786,633
25 (75,882,381) (75,882,381)
26 262,973,595 262,973,595
(41,783,186) 150,262,806
9 (10,056,994) (10,151,288)
(97,498,065) {192,025,700)
546,032,045 643,456,108
441 887 1,108,632
546,473,932 644,564,740
5,215,082,558 3,280,364,121
38
58,782,342 78,347,433
17,477,998 17,015,200
39 4,553,592 4,522,500



BLC BANK S.A.L
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

The accompanying notel to 48 form an integral part of the consolidated tinancial statements
Year ended December 31,

Interest income

Less: Tax on interest
Interest income, net of tax
Interest expense

Net mterest income

Fee and commission mcoime
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income

Losses arising from the derecognition of investment
securities measured at amortized cost

Losses arising from the derecognition of investment
securities measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Net interest and other loss on investment securities at

fair value through profit or loss

Gain on disposal of investment in subsidiaries
Other operating expenses, net

Net financial revenues / {(expenses)

Allowance for expected credit losses, net
Recovery of loans and advances, net

Notes 20622 2021
LBP'0G0 LBFE'0GO
224,720,746 260,529,706
(16,051,029} (21,101,055

28 208,669,717 239,428,651
29 (27,022,698) (63,314,346)
181,647,019 176,114,305
30 73,786,136 37,048,266
31 _(5,239,251) {1,547,213)
68,546,885 35,501,053
32 - {14,521,566)
i3 - (89,576)
34 (15,120,894) (184,024,867)
392,523 -
35 (76,145,511) (36,908,224)
159,320,022 (23,928,875)
42 (111,393,740) (59,402,555)

Net financial revenues losses after net exected credit losses

Net gain on disposal of property and equipment and

properties acquired in satisfaction of loans
Provision for risks and charges

Staff costs

General and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Loss before income tax

Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Attibutable to equity
Equity holders of the Bank
Noun-controlling interests

13,15

22
36
37
15,16
14

21

(117,327) 273,755
47,808,955 (83,057,675)
11,354,022 9,037,567

(11,051,500) (20,804,000)

(97,291,927) (52,102,882)

(40,215,026) (36,142,514)
(6,839,645) (7,581,656)
(1,216,250) (1,278,667)

(97,451,371)  (191,929,827)

(41,259) (74,103)

(97,492,630)  (192,003,930)

(97.498.,065)
5,435

(192,025,700)
21,770

{97,492,630)

(152,003,930)

The accompanying notel to 48 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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BLC BANK S.A.L
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income:

ftems that will not be reclossified subsequently ro
profit or loss:

Net Change n fair value of investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Deferred tax

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss:

Net Change in fair value of debt securities at fair value
through other comprehensive income {net of tax)
Deferred tax

Total other comprehensive mcome / (loss) for the year
Total comprehensive loss for the year
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interests

Year ended December 31,

Notes 2022

2021

LBP'600

LBP'000

(97,492,630)  (192,003,930)

421,118 (7,315,533)
17,21 (129,295) 833,601
291,823 (6,481,932)
23,271 1,490,109
17,21 (220,800) (253,319)
(197,529) 1,236,790
94,294 (5,245,142)
(97,398,336) _ (197,249,072)

(97,403,771)
5,435

(197,270,842)
21,770

(97,398,336)

(197,249,072)

The accompanying notel to 48 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements



BLC BANK S.A.L
Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

Preferred Shareholders Cumulative  {Accumulated
Shares and cash Non- Change in losses) Non-
Shares Treasury contribution  Distributable Fair Value o Retained Loss for the conteolling

Capital Premiums shares to Capital Reserves  investment Carnings Year Total interests Total Equity

.BP'O00 LBPO00 LBP'000 LBP'D0OO LBP'0D0 LBP'0ODO LB P00 LBP'0OGO LBP'OOG LBPQO0 LBrong
Bakmgy December 31,202 204000000 152786633 (76,855.365) 69289411 262937 542 (4,906.146) 177,761,217 (27441570) 7675717922 1.196.634 TO8.708.356
Appropraion el 2020 kss - - - - - - (27441 570) 27441570 - - -
Contebutons from sharcholders (Naie 233 - - - 72203032 - - - - 72203032 - 72203032
Adstmenis rebiied w dsposal of subswlary - - - - - - - - - (59,135 (59135}
Chitge nnen-coniralling injerests - - - - - (209363 (20.936)
(ther movement - - - 36,053 - (37.893) . (1,840 (29.681) {31521
et of exchange rates changes - - 972,984 - - - - - 972984 - Y72.984
Deferred s on future dividend distribution ol subsidiaries - - - - - - (18,948} - {18,948) - (18948}
Totad comprehensive foss for the year 2021 - - - - (5,245,142) - (392,025,700}  (197,270,842) 2L.770 (197.249072)
Bakinee Heevmber 31,2021 214000000 152,786,633 (75,882,381) 141,492,443 262,973,595 (10,151,288) 150,262,806 {192,025,700) 643,456,108 1,108,632 644.564,740
Appropriatien of 2021 Ioss - - - - - - {192,025,700) 192,025,700 - -
Change o soo-¢ontrolling inlerests - - - - - - - - - (672,180) (672,180)
UNlher movement - - - - - - 28,589 - 28,589 - 28,589
[0Teet ol exchange rates changes - - - - - - - - -
Delerved s on futere dividend distribution of subs idiaries - - - - - - (48,881} - {48,881) - (48 881)
Towal comprehensive ks lor the year 2022 - - - - - 94,294 - {97498065)  {9740377D) 5435 (97.398,336)
Bakiwee December 31, 2022 214000000 152786633  (75,882.381) 141,492,443 262973,595  (10,056,994.00) (41,783,186) (97498065) 546,032,045 441 887 346473932

The accompanying notes 1 1o 48 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statement
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BLC BANK S.A.L

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss forthe year

Adjustments for:

Allowance for expected credit losses (net)

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation ot right-of-use

Provision forrisk and charges (net)

Provision for end-of-service indemnities (net)

Provision for [oss on foreign cumrency poesition

Unrealized loss on investments at fair value thirough profit or loss
lncome taxexpense

(GainYloss on disposal of property and equipment

Gain on disposal of property acquired in satis faction of loans
Dividend income

Interest expense

Interest income

Net decrease in loans and advances to customers

Net decrease in investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Net increase in investments at fair value through profit or loss
Net decrease in investments at amortized cost

Net increase /(decrease) in customers’ deposits

MNet increase in compulsory deposits with the Central bank
Net decrease in margin with banks

Net decrease in term deposits with Central Bank

Net increase in deposits from banks

Net increase in other assets

Net {decrease)/increase in other liabilities

Proceeds fromdisposal of assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
Acquisition of assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
Settlements made from provisions

Income taxpaid

Taxon reventues paid

Dividends received from investments at fair value through profit
Other movement

Interest paid

Interest received

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds fromdisposal of property and equipment
Acquisition of property and equipment

Increase in intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of assets held forsale

Net change in non-controlling interest

Net cash generated from/(used) in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Settlement of lease liabilities
Shareholders' cash contribution to capital
MNet decrease in loan to a bank

Net decrease in other borrowings

MNet cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Eifect of foreign currency tluctuation and other adjustments
Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents - End of year

Year ended December 31,

Notes 2(22 2021
LBP'QO0 LLBP'OOO
(97.,492.630) {192,003,930)
42 111.393,740 39,402,555
15,16 6,839,645 7,581,656
13 1,216,250 1,278,667
22 11,051,500 20,804,000
22 17,363,780 863,052
22 - 11,691
34 15,300,009 (184,030,219
21 41,259 74,103
14 {1,608,430) 121,563
12 (9,745,593) (9.159,130)
34,35 (93,552) (5,352)
29 27,022,698 63,314,346
28 (208,755,280 (239,428,651
(127,466,604) (471,175,64%)
434,980,999 394,315,776
1,400,239 20,456,475
(29,633,818) {84,567,838)
78,666,146 549,761,833
28,252,205 (404,775,183)
(95,649,741} (38,922,317)
812,742 -
173,983,685 140,584,248
27,598,164 (33,959,691)
8.306.753 (25.655.793)
(12,357,084) 9,944 625
40 12,278,588 16,635,263
(1,680,263) -
22 (4,887,016) (467,751)
494,604,995 71,773,998
(74,286) (3,144,177)
- (11,492,591)
34 93,552 5,352
{20,291) (29,681)
(21,371,611 (70,920,437
192,302,856 250,184,742
665,535,215 236.377.200
2,546,099 4,524
(260,168} (840,943)
(41,833) (145,571)
21,145,253 -
{872,180y (20,956)
22,717,171 (1,002,946)
13 (1,398,540) (2,702,774)
23 - 72,203,032
704,766 686,646
20 (36,388,070) (85,373,307)
(37,081.,844) (15,186,403)
651,170,542 220,187,851
- 2,772,248
40 1,075.865,395 852,905,296
40 1,727,035,937 1,075,865,395

The accompanying notes | to 48 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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BLC BANK S.AL ‘
Notes to the Conseolidated Financial Statements For the year ended December 31, 2022

I. Formation and activities

BLC Group S.A L., (the "Group"), is a Lebanese joint stock company registered in the Commercial Register
under No. 1952 and in the Central Bank of Lebanon list of banks under No. 11. The Consolidated financial
statements of the Group comprise the financial statements of the Bank and those of its subsidiaries
(collectively of the “Group”). The Group is primarily involved in investment, corporate and retail banking.

=)

The Bank’s headquarters are located at BLC Bank building, Adlieh Square, Beirut, Lebanon.
Fransabank S.A.L. ts the direct parent of the Bank.

The consolidated subsidiaries consist of the following as at December 31:

Counfry of
Ownership interest Incorporation Business Activity
2022 2021
% %
BLC Finance S.A.L.(Dormant) 99.33 99.33 Lebanon Financial Institution
BLC Services S.AL. 91.33 91.33 Lebanon Insurance Brokerage

1.1 The Macro economic Environment

The Group’s operations are mostly in Lebanon that has been witnessing, since 17 October 2019, severe events
that have set off an interconnected fiscal, monetary and economic crisis, as well as deep recession that have
reached unprecedented levels. Sovereign credit ratings have witnessed a series of downgrades by all major
rating agencies and reached the level of default when, on 7 March 2020, the Lebanese Republic announced
that it will withhold payment on the bonds due on 9 March 2020, which was followed by another
announcement on 23 March 2020 for the discontinuation of payments on all of its US Dollar-denominated
Eurobonds.

Throughout this sequence of events, the ability of the Lebanese Government and the banking sector in
Lebanon to borrow funds from international markets was significantly affected. Banks have imposed
unofficial capital controls, restricted transfers of foreign currencies outside Lebanon, significantly reduced
credit Hines to companies and withdrawals of cash to private depositors, all of which added to the disruption
of the country’s economic activity, as the economic model of Lebanon relies mainly on imports and
consumption. Businesses are downsizing, closing or going bankrupt, and unemployment and poverty are
rising fast and have reached unprecedented levels.

The difficulty in accessing foreign currencies led to the emergence of a parallel market to the peg whereby
the price to access foreign currencies has been increasing constantly, deviating significantly from the peg of
1,507.5 USD/LBP. This has resulted in an uncontrofled rise in prices and the incessant de facto depreciation
of the Lebanese Lira, impacting intensely the purchasing power of Lebanese citizens, driving a currency crisis,
high inflation and rise in the consumer price index.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

During 2020, in an attempt to control the high rise in prices and to compensate for the loss in the Lebanese
people’s purchasing power, the Central Bank ot Lebanon, through several cireulars, introduced the following
measures:

a) Subsidised imports of essential goods (fuel oil, medicine and wheat) by providing foreign currencies for
these imports at the rvate of 1,507.5 USD/LBP (the official exchange rate). During 2021, this subsidy was
lifted.

b) Introduced the Sayrafa Platform Rate to be used only in specific circumstances.

¢) Subsidised imports of Tier 2 food basket products (e.g. coffee, tea, canned food, imported meat) by
providing foreign currencies for these tmports at the Platforim Rate. During 2021, this subsidy was lifted.

d) Introduced exceptional measures for bank depositors to withdraw small amounts of cash in LBP from
their “local™ foreign currency bank accounts at the Platform Rate, but up to limits set by the Group.

During May 2021, the Central Bank of Lebanon introduced the framework of exceptional measures for
foreign-currency operations. Hence, banks operating in Lebanon must process customers’ FX operations {buy
and sell) related to their personal or commercial needs on the electronic platform “Sayrafa”. Transactions with
customers encompass purchase and sale of foreign currencies banknotes against LBP, as well as operations
from/to foreign currencies external accounts against LBP. Sayrafa corresponds to a floating system and the
Sayrafa average rate and volume of foreign currency operations are published on the website of the Central
Bank of Lebanon.

However, despite these efforts, inflation increased at an accelerating pace, eroding the real value of the local
currency and “local” fereign currency bank accounts (subject to unofficial capital controls), and tossing
Lebanon in hyperinflation and major economic collapse.

In mid-2021, BDL Basic Circutar 158 was issued defining the mechanism for the gradual settlement of foreign
currency deposits up to an amount of USD50,000 based on several eligibility criteria. Eligible funds will be
transferred to a subaccount and paid on a monthly basis of USD 400 in cash or equivaient and an amount in
LBP equivalent to USD400 and converted at a rate of LBP12,000 to the US Dollar {before amendment at a
rate of LBP15,000 to the US Dollar on 20 January 2023) that will be paid 50% in cash and 50% credited to a
payment card.

The Central Bank of Lebanon recently announced that as at 31 December 2022, 170,000 depositors have
50 far benefited from the application of this circular for a total amount of USD 1.2 billion.

As a result of the unofficial capital controls, the multitude of exchange rates, the hyperinflation, and the
potential repercussions of government reform measures on (i) the banks operating in Lebanon, and (i) the
Lebanese people’s net worth, their local businesses and their local bank accounts, the Lebanese market saw
the need to differentiate between onshore assets and offshore assets, foreign currency bank accounts that are
subject to unofficial capital controls and those that are not subject to capital controls, onshore liabilities and
offshore liabilities. The need to differentiate is mostly due to the difference in the perceived real economic
value. Hence the new terms in the Lebanese market, such as “local Dollars™ to designate local US Dollars
bank accounts that are subject to unofficial capital controls, and “fresh funds/accounts” to designate foreign
currency cash and foreign currency bank accounts which are free from capital controls (as they are sourced
from foreign currency cash and/or from incoming transfers from abroad). '
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Lebemese Government s Financial Recovery Plan

A financial recovery plan was ratified by the Cabinet on 20 May 2022, The document was passed by the
Cabinet i its final session hours before losing decision-making powers, following the election of a new
parhament on 15 May 2022.

Lebanon’s government foresees cancelling “a large part” of the Central Bank’s foreign currency obligations
to comimercial banks and dissolving non-viable banks by November, according to the Plan.

The latter includes several measures that are prerequisites to unlock funds from a preliminary deal with the
International Monetary Fund agreed in April, that could help pull the country out of a three-year financial
meltdown.

The endorsed plan foresees a full audit of the Central Bank’s forex financial standing by July. Then, the
government “will cancel, at the outset, a large part of the Central Bank’s foreign currency obligations to banks
in order to reduce the deficit in BDL’s capital”, the document said. The largest 14 commercial banks,
representing 83% of total assets, would also be audited. Viable banks would be recapitalized with “significant
contributions™ from banks’ shareholders and large depositors.

The plan made no mention of a sovereign fund to manage state-owned assets but pledges to Himit recourse to
public assets, which had been a demand of Lebanon’s commercial banks. The plan said it would protect small
depositors “to the maximum extent possible” in each viable bank but did not lay out a minimum amount to
be protected — unlike draft plans. Non-viable banks, however, would be dissolved by the end of November, it
added. As of today, laws for the reinstatement of financial stability, for the resofution of banks and for capital
controls are yet to be issued. The timeline for their issuance is affected by the presidential vacuum and political
deadlock facing Lebanon. It also said the government would unify the official exchange rate, ending a system
in which, the government offered vartous exchange rates for different operations.

International Monetary Fund (IMF)

The Lebanese authorities and the IMF team have reached a staff-level agreement (SLA) on comprehensive
economic policies that could be supported by a 46-month Extended Fund Arrangement (EFF) with requested
access of SDR 2,173.9 million {equivalent to about USD 3 billion). This agreement is subject to approval by
IMF Management and the Executive Board, after the timely implementation of all prior actions and
confirmation of international partners’ financial support.

Prior actions include the following measures prior the IMF Board’s consideration:
» Cabinetapproval of a bank restructuring strategy that recognizes and addresses upfront the large losses
in the sector, while protecting smatl depositors and limiting recourse to public resources.
o Parliament approval of an appropriate emergency bank resolution legistation which is needed to
implement the bank restructuring strategy.
« Initiation of an externally assisted bank-by-bank evaluation for the 14 largest banks,
e Parliament approval of a reformed bank secrecy law to bring it in tine with internationatl standards.
o Compietion of the special purpose audit of the BDL’s foreign asset position.
« Cabinet approval of a medium-term fiscal and debt restructuring strategy.
» Parliament approval of the 2022 budget, to start regaining fiscal accountability.
»  Unification by BDL of the exchange rates for authorized current account transactions.

As of date, the parliament approved the reformed bank secrecy law and the 2022 budget.
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While no much progress was achieved on other fronts, the IMF issued in March 2023, the concluding
statement of its 2023 Article 1V Mission. {1 says Lebanon is at a particularly difficult juncture. For over
three years, it has been facing an unprecedented crisis, with severe economic dislocation, a dramatic
depreciation of the Lebanese lira and triple digit inflation that have had a staggering impact on people’s
lives and livelihocds. Unemployment and emigration have increased sharply, and poverty is at histovically
high levels. The provision of basic services like electricity, public health, and public education have been
severely disrupted, and essential social support programs and public investment have cotlapsed.

More broadly, capacity in public administration has been critically weakened. Banks are unable to extend
credit to the economy and bank deposits are mostly inaccessible to customers. The presence of a large
number of refugees exacerbates Lebanon’s challenges.

Maritime border demarcation agreement

The maritime border demarcation agreement between Lebanon and Israel was finalized in October. The
deal could enhance long-term economic prospects and improve the country’s external position which is
positive for Lebanon’s credit profile, but implementation risks remain significant. International Rating Fitch
disclosed that gas discoveries would generate important economic benefits for Lebanon, should the
resources prove to be commercially viable. Moody’s disclosed that the agreement is credit positive for
Lebanon because it wili help alleviate the country’s chronic power deficit and kick-start an economic
recovery. Such deals and initiatives are of a fong term rather than imminest nature and the timing of the
flow of economic benefit and positive development on Lebanon is uncertain.

Presidentinl vacuum

The presidential term has ended on 31 October 2022 without the election of a new President despite holding
a number of electoral sessions that witness non-quorum in their second rounds. As such, Lebanon has
entered a presidential vacuum since then, which has stalled cabinet formation, reforms and final IMF
agreement.

It remains unclear how this will evolve, and the Group continues to monitor the situation closely. Any and
all such events mentioned above will add up to the already material adverse prospects on the Group’s
business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects, liquidity and capital position.

1.2 Central Bank of Lebanon (BDL) policy initiatives

Since the beginning of the crisis in October 2019, the Central Bank of Lebanon has issued a series of circulars
reflecting on policy initiatives and crisis management. Below is brief of the key circulars:

Regulatory framework:

o [ntermediate Circular 507:

- BDL licensees should apply the following minimum regulatory expected credit loss (“ECL™) ratios,
while permitting banks to constitute progressively those ECLs over a period of five years (starting
from 2020). The BDL Central Council may consider the extension of the period to 10 years, for
banks that manage to complete the 20% cash contribution to capital requirement:

Foreign currency placements with BDL., including certificates of deposits: 1.89%

Local currency deposits with BDL: 0%
Lebanese government bonds in foreign currencies: 45% and later on increased to 75% in 2022

Lebanese treasury bills in local currency: 0%
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lntermediate circular 649 issued on 24 November 2022 replaced the aforementioned five years and
ten years deadline by the fixed dates of 31 December 2026 and 3| December 2029 respectively.

BDL licensees are allowed not to downgrade joans exposures showing past dues {principal and
interest) between February 2020 and December 2020 as a result of COVID-19, unless borrower
ceases to operate as a going concern, in which case exposure should be automatically downgraded
to Stage 3.

Prohibition of dividends distribution on banks’ common shares for the years 2019 and 2020 (years
2021 and 2022 were subsequently added by way of Intermediate Circulars 616 and 639
respectively).

By February 28, 2021 (extended), banks should complete a 20% increase of the common equity tier
I capital as at December 31, 2018,

The BDL Central Council may consider for banks to complete 50% of this capital increase through
transfer of real estate by the sharecholders, provided these are liquidated within 5 years.

Banks can include the revaluation surplus of property and equipment in Tier [ capital, subject to
BDL approval on the revaluation. However, on 20 January 2023, Intermediate Circular 659 capped
the inclusion of revatuation of fixed assets at 50% under certain conditions while allowing the use
of the prevailing Sayrafa rate at the end of each reporting period over 5 years. Besides, it widened
the scope of revaluation to include participations and long-term loans to affiliated banks and
financial institutions.

Banks must comply with the minimum capital adequacy ratios. Bank should refrain from dividend
distribution, should these ratios fall below 7% for common equity Tier { ratio; 10% for tier | ratio;
and 12% for total capital ratio.

Furthermore, if the capital conservation buffer on common equity falls below 2.5% of risk weighted
assets during 2020 and 2021, banks should rebuild the gap by end 0f 2024, by a minimum of 0.75%

per year, starting 2022.

Banks are required to submit a comprehensive plan to Central Bank, reflecting own strategies to
comply with the regulatory minimum capital requirements, including the timeline to achieve
compliance. The plan should incorporate allowances required by the Banking Control Commission
of Lebanon against different risks banks are exposed to.

As exceptional measures, 100% of ECL on Stage 1 and Stage 2 exposures (except those against
sovereign and BDL exposures in local and foreign currency), may be added to commeon equity Tier
! capital. These will be gradually amortized to 75% tn 2022, 50% in 2023 and 25% in 2024.

Basic Circular 134

Banks should perform a fair value assessment of their assets and liabilities and set a plan to comply
with alt applicable regulatory requirements, namely those related to liquidity and capital adequacy,
and restore their levels of service which were in place before the economic crisis. Banks should
also submit a request to the BDL Central Council to reconstitute/raise their capital to the required
levels by the end of the first quarter of the year 2021, where applicable. In this respect, banks shall
consider soliciting their depositors to convert their deposits into shares or bonds, provided listing
the bank’s shares on the Beirut Stock Exchange.

In order to enhance their offshore liquidity, banks are required to instigate those depositors to
repatriate 30% (in the case of banks’ key executives and politically exposed persons) and 15% (for
other depositors) of their overseas transfers made since July 1, 2017 and exceeding the equivalent
of USD 500,000. Funds received witl be deposited in special saving accounts for 5 years and will
not be subject 10 compulsory reserve requirements.
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- Banks should secure by February 28, 2021, offshore foreign currency deposits equivalent to a
minmum of 3% of their total foreign currency as at July 31, 2020. The requirement was later
amended through Intermediate Circular 645 to consider foreign currency deposits as at 30
September 2022 as the basis for the computation nstead of 31 July 2020, thus lowering liquidity
required levels as customers’ deposits decreased over the period.

Intermediate Circular 575 approving banks te book exceptionally one third of the capital gains arising
from the revaluation of assets received in settlement of debts, under Tier 11 capital subject to the
approval of the BDL Central Council on the revaluation methodology and raising capital before
December 31, 2021 as follows:

- Add a maximum of one third of the revaluation gains under Tier 2 capital,
- Increase common equity Tier [ capital in cash by an amount at least equivalent to the amount of the
revaluation gains booked under Tier I capital.

Intermediate Circular 600 issued on 3 November 2021 requires banks to record existing and future
provisions for expected credit losses in the same currency as the related assets and off-balance sheet
exposures. Banks are also required to set in place necessary measures to manage their FX position
resulting from provisions recorded in foreign currencies.

Basic Circular 162 issued on 28 March 2022 requesting from banks to secure a level of liquidity
sufficient to allow public sector employees to withdraw their monthly salaries and other compensations
without setting any type of limits.

Basic Circular 163 issued on 27 May 2022 defining the framework for the monitoring of the accounts
of public officials, the performance of due diligence on their operations and the reporting to the Special
Investigation Committee on the basis of founded suspicion.

Intermediate Circular 637 issued on 27 July 2022 (amending Basic Circulars 65 and 78) requires banks
selling real estate properties or participations acquired in accordance with the provisions of Article 153
or 154 of the CMC, only against fresh USD or its equivalent in LBP based on Sayrafa rate.

Basic Circular 164 issued on 12 October 2022 and requesting banks to report to the Banking Control
Commuission on the cost of their monthly operating expenses that should be paid with fresh money, the
resources for settling these expenses and how to ensure those resources.

Intermediate Circular 649 1ssued on 24 November 2022 (amending Basic Circulars 44 and 143)
introduced a forbearance treatment in capital ratios computation by allowing the exclusion from
Common Equity Tier 1 of a portion of losses incurred from FX purchases from BDL against LBP
banknotes (66% and 33% respectively in 2022 and 2023).

Monetary policies and socio-economic support:

Intermediate Circular 648 1ssued on | November 2022 (amending Basic Circulars 14 and 67) reduced
by 50% the interest rates served on foreign currencies placements with BDL and on Certificates of
Deposits issued by BDL while continuing paying 50% of coupon payment in the instrument’s currency
and 50% in LBP at official rate (LBP1,507.5 to the US Dollar until 31 January 2023 and LBP15,000
to the US Dollar afterwards).
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Basic Circular 150 exempting banks from placing mandatory reserves with the Central Bank of
Lebanon m relation to funds transferred from abroad or cash deposits in foreign currency received
after 9 April 2020 subject to preserving and guaranteeing the liberty of the depositors in determining
the use of these funds and benefiting from all kinds of banking services (transfers abroad, international
credit card limits, foreign currency cash withdrawals ...)

Intermediate Circulars 347 and 532 requesting banks to rollover loans to customers in local and
foreign currencies maturing between March 2020 to June 2020 up to 5 years at zero interest rate and
fees, subject to the bank assessment of the customers’ mability to settle their dues because of the
economic situation. BDL also allowed the extension of loans to businesses to fund salaries and
operating expenses, at the same terms mentioned above. In return, BDL would extend loans to banks
in USD at zero interest rates against those loans to banks’ customers.

Basic Circular 152 and Intermediate Circular 569 allowing banks extension of loans up to 5 years at
zero interest rate, to help those affected by the Beirut Seaport exploston. In return, BDL would extend
loans to banks imn USD at zero interest rates against those loans to banks’ customers.

Intermediate Circular 568 requesting banks to accept repayment by resident customers of their USD
denominated retail loans (up to USD800,000 for housing loans and USD100,000 for retail loans) in
local currency at the official exchange rate (LBP1,507.5 to the USD). Oun 20 January 2023,
Intenmediate Circular 656 revoked the aforementioned provision effective 1 February 2023.

Basic Circular 167 1ssued on 16 December 2021 whereby the Central Bank of Lebanon will be
providing banks with US Dollar up to the limits set for each bank, at the Sayrafa rate. In return banks
will provide the total amount to their customers at the same Sayrafa rate against LBP at limits set by
the bank.

Intermediate Circular 659 issued on 20 January 2023 (amending Basic Circulars 32 and 44) states that
banks should liquidate their short open FX positions, as at 31 December 2022, gradually, on a period
of 5 vears. In addition, for the capital ratios computation, it capped the inclusion of revaluation of fixed
assets at 50% in Comunon Equity Tier 1 under certain conditions while allowing the use of the
prevailing Sayrafa rate at the end of each reporting period over 5 years.

Foreign exchange policies:

Basic Circular 151 "Cash Withdrawals from Foreign Currency Bank Accounts” dated April 21, 2020
provides withdrawals of pre-crisis customers’ deposits in foreign currencies with banks, at the rate of
3,900 LBP / USD, which was then increased to 8,000 LBP / USD and within a monthly limit of USD
3,000 by bank account. Effective untit! June 30, 2022, Intermediate Circular 601 issued on 8 December
2021 is an amendiment to the provisions of Basic Circular 151. The circular stipulates that the Platform
Rate to be applied for withdrawal cash from foreign currencies accounts is USD/LBP 8,000 vp to a
maximum limit of USD 3,000 per month. On 20 January 2023, Intermediate Circular 657 amended the
rate to be USD/ LBP 15,000 instead of USD/ LBP 8,000 while reducing the limit from USD 3,000 per
month to USD 1,600 per month.

Basic Circular 137 ~Exceptional Procedures on Foreign currency Operations” issued on May 10,
2021 enacting the legal and regulatory framework of the ‘Sayrafa’ foreign exchange trading ptatform
developed by the Central Bank of Lebanon.
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Transactions that can be conducted on the “Savrafa’ platform consist of purchasing LBP in exchange
of fresh foreign currency and purchasing fresh foreign currency i exchange of LBP. The bid/ask
spread that banks are allowed to achieve, is capped at 1% of the purchase price.

«  The Central Bank of Lebanon may at its sole discretion, interfere on the Platform to stabilize the
exchange rate. The ‘Sayrafa’ platform is not available for trading onshore pre-crisis foreign currency
bank accounts as these are subject to unofficial capital control.

The average daily trading exchange rates and daily volume of foreign currency traded on the Sayrafa
platform are published on the Central Bank of Lebanon website.

e Basic Circular 158 “Exceptional Measures for the Gradual Withdrawal of Deposits in Foreign
currencies " issued on June 8, 2021 setting out an exceptional framework for the settlement of onshore
foreign currency deposits up to an amountequtvalent to USD 50,000. To benefit from the provisions of
the said circular, certain eligibility criteria must be met. Customers’ monthly entitlements are (i) an
amount of USD 400 in cash or equivalent (transfer abroad, credited to a payment card with international
usage, etc.}and (i) an amount in LBP equivalent to USD 400 and converted at a rate USD/LBP 12,000
(before amendment USD/ LBP at 15,000 on 20 January 2023), noting that 50% of the amount will be
paid in cash and 50% will be credited to a payment card.

The financing of the aforementioned process will be secured equally through (i) BDL reduction of
compulsory reserves requirements from 15% to 14% as per BDL Intermediary Circular 586 and (i)
the bank’s offshore liquidity. To that end, banks can use their foreign liquidity subject computed as per
BDL Basic Circular 154 requirements on the condition they reconstitute it by December 31, 2022,
extended to 31 December 2023 by Intermediate Circular 626 issued on 21 June 2022.

o Basic Circular 159 issued on 17 August 2021 preventing banks from processing foreign currency funds
received from customers whether in the form of cash or through offshore transfers at a value other than
its face value, with the exception of transactions pertaining to the settlement of loans. It also prevented
banks from purchasing foreign currencies at parallel rate with the exception of the purchase foreign
currencies duly recorded on the electronic platform and resulting from offshore incoming transfers
with the purpose of (i) enhancing liquidity, (i) engaging in medium or long-term investments, (1)
settling international commitments. Finally, the circular prevented banks from purchasing bankers’
checks and other bank’s accounts in foreign currencies whether directly or indirectly.

o Intermediate Circular 661 issued on 31 January 2023 (amending Basic Circulars 23, 152 and 159)
states that the exchange rate for repayment was increased to LBP15,000 to the US Dollar.

1.3 The Group’s Financial particulars

1.3.1 Foreign exchange

Assets and liabilities in foreign currency and transactions in foreign currency regardless of whether they
are onshore or offshore, were reflected in these consolidated financial statements at the official published
exchange rate, as follows:

2022 2027
Yenr-end Rate  Average Rafte Year-end Rate Averuge Rate
LBP LBP LBP LBP
US Doliar 1,507.5 1,507.5 1507.5 1507.5
Euwro 1,603.83 1,590.21 1,701.52 1,786.92
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The Bank’s monetary assets and habilities in foreign currency. were converted in Lebanese Pound at the
official exchange rate peg of USD1 = LBP1,507.5 as published by the Central Bank of Lebanon on a monthly
basis.

However, several exchange rates have emerged since the last quarter of 2019 that vary significantly among each
other and from the official one: parallel exchange markets and the Sayrafa rate that are highly volatile, the
Platform Rate, estimated exchange rates detailed in the government’s Financial Recovery Plan, in addition to
different exchange rates adopted for commercial transactions purposes in Lebanon.

On 21 April 2020, the Central Bank of Lebanon issued Basic Circular 151 concerning depositors who wish
to withdraw amounts of cash from their “local” foreign currencies accounts as per a specific rate up to
limits set by their bank. The limits set by banks in Lebanon had monthiy averages of USD 3,000 per bank
account. The specific rate was USD/LBP 3,900 throughout the peried from the issuance of the circular.
During December 2021, it was increased to USD 1 /L.BP 8,000 and to US$ [/LBP 15,000 subsequent to
year end.

On 10 May 2021, the Central Bank of Lebanon issued Basic Circular 157 setting the framework of
exceptional measures for foreign-currency operations. Hence, banks operating in Lebanon must process
customers’ FX operations (buy and sell) related to their personal or commercial needs on the efectronic
platform “Sayrafa”. Transactions with customers encompass purchase and sale of foreign currencies
banknotes against LBP, as well as operations from/to foreign currencies external accounts against LBP.
Sayrafa corresponds to a floating system and the Sayrafa average rate and volume of foreign currency
operations are published on the website of the Central Bank of Lebanon. Foreign currency operations were
executed on the Sayrafa platform at the following exchange rates:

2022 2021
Average Rate for
the period from

1) May to 31

Year-end Rate Average Rate Year-end Rate December

LBP LBP LBP LBP

US Dollar 38,000 26,433 22,700 16,266

Because of the gap between the several exchange rates available, the number of variables and assumptions
affecting the possible future resolution of the uncertainties is very high, increasing the subjectivity and
complexity of the judgment and management was unable to determine the rate at which the future cash
flows represented by the transaction or balance could have been settled depending on its source and nature,
if those cash flows had oceurred at the measurement date. Accordingly, the Group uses the official publiished
exchange rate above to translate all balances and transactions in foreign currencies regardless of their source
or nature, which does not represent a reasonable estimate of expected cash flows in Lebanese Lira that
would have to be generated/used from the realisation of such assets or the payment of such liabilities at the
date of the transaction or at the date of the consolidated financial statements. We are unable to estimate the
effects on these consolidated financial statements.

In February 2023, the Central Bank of Lebanon changed the official published exchange rate from
LBPI{,507.5 to LBP15,000 to the US Doliars. Sayrafa Rates and paraliel market rates remained highly
volatile and divergent from the new official published exchange rate official (LBP42,000 and 1LBP62,240

respectively at 1 February 2023).
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The consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022 do not include
adjustments from the change in this rate from LBPF1,507.5 to LBP 15,000 to the US Dollars.

The Group will use the new rate of LBP15,000 in its subsequent financial information reporting, with the
first period being the quarterly reporting as of 31 March 2023.

1.3.2 Hyperinflation in Lebanon

As of 31 December 2022, and 2021, all conditions have been met for the Group’s consolidated financial
statements to incorporate the inflation adjustment provided under IAS 29 “Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies”. IFRS requires that financial statements of any entity whose functional
currency is the currency of a hyperinflationary economy be restated into the current purchasing power at
the end of the reporting period. Paragraph 4 of TAS 29 states that it is preferable for all entities that report
in the currency of a hyperinflationary economy to apply the standard at the same date. [n order to achieve
uniformity as to the identification of an economic environment of this kind, [AS 29 provides certain
guidelines: a cumulative three-year inflation rate exceeding 100% is a strong indicator of hyperinflation,
but also qualitative factors, such as analyzing the behavior of population, prices, interest rates and wages
should also be considered.

The Lebanese Central Administration of Statistics reported 3-year and [2-month cumulative rates of
inflation of 1,670% and 122%, respectively, as of December 2022 (2021: 753% and 224%). Qualitative
indicators, following the deteriorating economic condition and currency controls, also support the
conclusion that Lebanon is a hyperinflationary economy for accounting purposes for periods ending on or
after 31 December 2020.

Therefore, entities whose functional currency is the Lebanese Liras, should restate their financial statements
to reflect the effects of inflation in conformity with IAS 29. Such restatement shall be made as if the Lebanese
economy has always been hyperinflationary; using a general price index that reflects the changes in the
currency’s purchasing power.

The effects of the application of IAS 29 are summarized below:

(a) Financial statements must be adjusted to consider the changes in the currency’s general purchasing
power, so that they are expressed in the current unit of measure at the end of the reporting period.

(b) In summary, the restatement method under TAS 29 is as foliows:

I. Monetary items are not restated in as much as they are already expressed in terms of the measuring
unitcurrent at the closing date of the reporting period. In an inflationary period, keeping monetary
assets generates foss of purchasing power and keeping monetary liabilities generates an increase
in purchasing power. The net monetary gain or loss shall be included as income for the period for
which it is reported.

ii. Non-monetary items carried at the current vatue of the end date of the reporting period shall not
be restated to be presented in the balance sheet, but the restatement process must be completed in
order to determine into the current purchasing power at the end of the reporting period the income
derived from such non-monetary items.

lii. Non-monetary items carried at historical cost or at the current value of a date prior to the end of
the reporting period are restated using coefficients that reflect the variation recorded in the general
level of prices from the date of acquisition or revaluation to the closing date of the reporting
period, then comparing the restated amounts of such assets with the relevant recoverable values.
Depreciation charges of property, plant and equipment and amortization charges of intangible
assets recognized in profit or loss for the period, as well as any other consumption of non-
monetary assets will be determined based on the new restated amounts.
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iv.  Income and expenses are restated from the date when they were recorded, except for those profit
or loss items that reflect or include in their determination the consumption of assets carried at the
purchasing power of the currency as of a date prior to the recording of the consumption, which
are restated based on the date when the asset to which the item is related originated; and except
those profit or loss items originated {rom comparing two measurements expressed in the
purchasing power of currency as of different dates, for which it is necessary to identify the
compared amounts, restate them separately, and compare them again, but with the restated
amounts.

v. At the beginning of the first year of application of the restatement method of consolidated
financial statements in terms of the current measuring unit, the prior-year comparatives are
restated in terms of the measuring unit current at the end of the current reporting period. The
equity components, except for reserved earnings and undistributed retained earnings, shall also
be restated, and the amount of undistributed retained earnings shall be determined by the
difference between net assets restated at the date of transition and the other components of
opening equity expressed as indicated above, once all remaining equity components are restated.

As of the date of the accompanying consolidated financial statements, for the reasons described below,
Management is temporarily unable to apply the above-mentioned standard nor is it able to quantify the
effect that the application of JAS 29 would have on the presented consolidated financial statements,
However, Management estimates such effects to be significant. This situation must be taken into account
when interpreting the information reported by the Group in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements including its consolidated statement of financial position, consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and consolidated cash flow statement.

The Group uses the official exchange rate of 1,507.5 LBP/USD to translate balances and transactions in
foreign currencies. Since the emergence of the parallel market and since the introduction by the Central Bank
of Lebanon of the “Sayrafa Rate” and the “Platform Rate”, the Lebanese market has witnessed multiple
pricing and valuations of balances receivable and payable and operations in foreign currencies, depending on
the settlement method which is based on unofficial markets. The Group is translating balances (assets and
liabilities) and transactions in foreign currencies at the official published exchange rate, which does not
represent a reasonable estimate of expected cash flows in Lebanese Liras that would have to be generated /
used from the realization of such assets or the payment of such liabilities at the date of the transaction or of
the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, [AS 29 requires the use of a general price index to reflect changes in purchasing power. Most
governments issue periodic price indices that vary in their scope, but all entities that repart in the currency
of the same economy should use the same index. The consumer price index is normally closest to the
concept of the general price index required by IAS 29 because it is at the end of the supply chain and reflects
the impact of prices on the general population’s consumption basket. The weights allocated for the
calculation of the consuiner price index impact the consumer price index and might need to be revisited
based on the new behavior of the popuiation as a result of the crisis facing Lebanon.

Such maiters impede a proper application of [AS 29 as any application urder the current circumstances
would not provide more relevant financial statements to Management, shareholders and other users.

The application of 1AS 29 is very complex and requires the Group to develop new accounting software and
processes, internal controls and governance framework.
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Based on the Group’s preliminary assessment, the absence of an official legal payment and settlement
mechanism that would reflect in a reascnable manner, the expected cash flows for assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies, and the absence of an accurate reflection of price changes impede the useful information
that would have been otherwise produced from the application of TAS 29.

Accordingly, the Group has postponed the apphcation of [AS 29 and incurring costs for developing accounting
processes and a governance framework until the Group is comfortable that such application would provide
the users with more refevant information.

1.3.3 Exposure to financial instruments

As at December 31, 2022, the Group's net credit exposure to Lebanese sovereign debt, including BDL,
represented approximately 63% of total assets (2021: 75%).

As at 31 December 2022, loss allowances on assets held at the Central Bank of Lebanon and the portfolio
of Lebanese government securities held at amortized cost are recorded n these consolidated financial
stateiments at the foss rates mentioned in the Central Bank of Lebanon’s Intermediate Circular 567 for 10
years. Due to the high levels of uncertainties, the lack of observable indicators, and the lack of visibility on
the government’s plans with respect to the Group’s exposures to the Centrat Bank of Lebanon and Lebanese
sovereign, we are unable to estimate in a reasonable manner expected credit losses on these exposures.
Accordingly, these consolidated financial statements do not include adjustments of the carrying amount of
these assets to their recoverable amounts based on International Financial Reporting Standards and an
expected credit loss model.

The impact is expected to be pervasive and will be reflected in the consolidated financial statements once the
debt restructuring has been defined conclusively by the government and all uncertainties and constraints are
resolved and the mechanism for allocating losses by asset class and currency is clear and conclusive.
Maximum exposures to the credit risk of the Central Bank of Lebanon and the Lebanese government and the
recognized loss allowances, as well as their staging are detailed in note 42 to these consolidated financial

statements.

Fair values of financial assets originated in Lebanon have been determined by the Group using notional prices
quoted on inactive and illiquid markets or using yield curves that are not reflective of economic reality and
market conditions. In the absence of reliable data, the Group did not disclose the fair value of financial
assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost as required by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements.

The downgrade of sovereign credit rating, the increase in credit, liquidity, market and operational risks
across all business sectors, the de-facto capital controls and restrictions on transfers of foreign currency
overseas exposing the banking sector to litigation, the current and future possible changes to fiscal,
economic and political conditions as well as changes to the legal and regulatory landscape in the Republic
of Lebanon stemming from the above events and the government’s recovery plans have led to significant
uncertainties and the full range of effects on the banking sector in general and on the Group’s financial
standing is unknown.

The financial position of the Group, as reported in these consolidated financial statements, does not reflect
the adjustments that would be required by IFRS as a result of the future government reform program, the
deep recession, the currency crisis and the hyperinflation.
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Due to the high levels of uncertainties, the lack of observabte indicators, the high gap between the parallel
market rates, the Sayrafa rate, the Platform Rate and the official published exchange rate and the lack of
visibility on the government’s plans with respect to:

(a) the high exposures of banks with the Central Bank of Lebanon, (b) the Lebanese Sovereign securities,
and (c) the currency exchange mechanisms and currency exchange rates that will be applied, management
1s unable to estimate in a reasonable manner, the impact of these matters on its consolidated financial
position.

Management considers that the adverse nimpact of the above is expected to be pervasive and will have a
significant negative impact on the equity of the Group and the recapitalization needs that will arise once
the necessary adjustments are determined and recorded.

As disclosed in Note 44 to these consolidated financial statements, the Group’s capital adeguacy ratio as at
December 31, 2022 and 2021, simifarly to other applicable regulatory ratios, was calculated based on the
disclosed figures, and did not take into consideration the adjustments that will result from the uncertainties
reflected above once these uncertainties become reasonably quantifiable.

1.3.4 Litigations and claims

Until the above uncertainties are resolved, the Group is continuing its operations as performed since 17
QOctober 2019 and in accordance with the laws and regulations. Unofficial capital controls and inability to
transfer foreign currencies to correspondent banks outside Lebanon are exposing the Group to litigations
that are dealt with on a case-by-case basis when they occur. The Group has been subject to increased
litigations as & result of these restrictive measures adopted by Lebanese banks in relation to withdrawal of
funds and transfers abroad, as well as in relation to the repayment by customers of local foreign currency
loans in Lebanese pound. Management is carefully considering the impact of these existing litigations and
claims. There are still uncertainties related to the consequences of these restrictive measures based on the
current available information and the prevailing laws and local banking practices.

However due to recent development and the increasing trend in judgments ruled in favor of the plaintiffs
and customers, management considers that they may affect negatively the offshore liquidity of the Group,
its foreign assets and its foreign currency mismatch. as disclosed in Note 44. The amount cannot be
determined presently.

The Lebanese crisis continues to impose severe limitations on the ability to conduct commercial banking
activities or transactions under the normal course of business in Lebanon. Market embedded factors, such
as unofficial capital controls, inability to secure foreign liquidity and the existence of several values for the
US Dollar, resulted into several practices and transactions that would not qualify as normal course of
business in a non-crisis environment, and for which there are no directly observable prices or a governing
legal/regulatory framework. Such practices and transactions expose the Group to increased litigation and
regulatory risks and negatively impact the financial position of the Group, its regulatory ratios and
covenants due the adverse effects of the uncertainties. There is a significant uncertainty in relation to the
extent and period over which this situation will continue and the impact that conducting operations under a
crisis environment in the foreseeable future will further have on-the Group's financial position, future
cashflows, results of operations, regulatory ratios and covenants. The Group's realization value of assets
and sufficiency and settlement value of liabilities are premised on future events, the outcome of which are
inherently uncertain.
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2 . Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

a. New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year

[n the current year, the Group has applied a number of amendments to [FRS Accounting Standards that are
effective for an accounting period that begins on or after | January 2022.

L

IFRS 3 Business Combinations — Reference to the Conceptual Framework
LAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets — Onerous contracts : Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract
Annual [mprovements to [FRS Accounting Standards 2018-2020 Cycle :
IERS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards — Subsidiary as a
First-time Adopter
® AFRS 9 Financial Instruments — fees in the “10 per cent” test for derecognition of financial
liabilities
@ IFRS 16 Leases — Lease incentives
®  1AS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in Fair Value measurements

The application of these revised IFRSs has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts
reported in these financial statements.

b. New and amended IFRS Standards in issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRS Accounting Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective:

L 3

[FRS 17 Insurance Contracts — The amendments defer the date of initial application of [FRS 17
{including the June 2020 and December 2021 amendments) to annual reporting periods beginning on
or after Janvary 1, 2023.

Amendments to [AS | Presentation of financial statements — Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current. The amendments are applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2024, with early application permitted.

Amendments to [AS 1 Presentation of financial statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgments — Disclosure of Accounting Policies. The amendiments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023.

Amendments to TAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors —
Definition of Accounting Estimates. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2023,

Amendments to 1AS 12 Income taxes — Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2023, with earlier application permitted.

Amendments to [FRS 16 Leases — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback — The amendment is for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024.
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Management does not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material impact on
the financial statements of the Group in future perieds shoutd such transactions arise.

3. Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with [nternational Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB).

The financial statements are presented in Lebanese Pound (LBP) which is the Group s reporting currency.
The primary currency of the economic environment in which the Group operates (functional currency) is
the Lebanese Pound. All values are rounded to the nearest thousands, except when indicated otherwise.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following that are
measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below:

¢ [and and buildings acquired prior to 1999 are measured at their revalued amounts based on market
prices prevailing during 1999 as permitted by local regulations, to compensate for the inflationary
effects prevailing in the earlier years.

« Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss and other comprehensive
income.

» Derivative financial instruments.

»  Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Following is a summary of the Group's significant accounting policies:

A. Basic of Consoclidation:

The Consolidated Financial statements of BLC Bank S.A.L. incorporated the financial statements of the
Bank and enterprises controlled by the Bank (its subsidiaries) as the reporting date. Control is achieved
when the Bank has:

* Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee);

» Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
= The ability to use tts power over the investee to affect its refurns.

The Bank re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or mere of the three elements of control.

When the Bank has less than a majority of the voting or similar right of an investee, the Bank considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

e The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements.
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e The Bank’s votirg rights and potential voting rights

Cousolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Bank obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Bank loses control of the subsidiary. Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the date the
Bank gains control until the date the Bank ceases to control the subsidiary.

Total Comprehensive income of subsidiartes is attributed to the owners of the Bank and to the non-
coutrolling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustinents are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by the Bank.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses (except for foreign currency transaction gains
or loss} are eliminated on consolidated. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized
gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment,

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Bank.

Upon the loss of contro], The Group derecognizes the assets and habilities of the subsidiary, any non-
controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit
arising on the loss of control s recognized in profit and loss. If the Group retains any interest in the
previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair valuve at the date that control is lost.

B. DBusiness combination

Acquisition of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in
a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred in profit and loss.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognized in profit and loss.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controtling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognized immediately in profit and loss. where
applicable, adjustments are made to provisional value of recognized assets and liabilities related to facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date. These are adjusted to the provisional goodwill
amount. All other adjustments including above adjustments made after one year are recognized in profit
and loss except to correct an error i accordance with [AS §.
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Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interest and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets i the event of Liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interests proportionate share of the recognized amounts of the acquiree s identifiable
net assets. The choice of the measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Non-
controlling interests in business acquisitions transacted so far by the Group were initially measured at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of net assets acquired. Any contingent consideration payable
is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration is classified at equity, it
is not remeasured, and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changed to the fair
value of the contingent consideration are recognized in profit and loss.

C. Foreien currencies

Transactions in currencies other than the Group's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the official rates prevailing at that
date. Nonmonetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranstated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise
except for exchange differences on transactions entered into n order to hedge certain foreign currency
risks, and except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to & foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, which are
recognized in other comprehensive income, and presented in the translation reserve in equity. These are
recognized in profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

D. Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the Group's statement of financial position when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the [nstrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financtal liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

If the transaction price differs from fair value at initial recognition, the Group will account for such
difference as follows:

e If fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability or
based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the difference is
recognized in profit or loss on initial recognition (i.e. day | profit or loss);

o In all other cases, the fair value will be adjusted to bring it in line with the transaction price (i.e. day
one profit or loss will be deferred by including it in the initial carrying amount of the asset or liability).
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After initial recognition, the deferred gamn or loss will be released to profit or loss on a rational basis, only
to the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (including time) that market participants would take
into account when pricing the asset or liabzlity.

E. Financial assets

All financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date where the purchase or sale of a
financial asset is under contract whose terms require defivery of the financial asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for
those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets classified as at FVTPL are recognized immediately in profit or {oss.

All recognized financial assets that are within the scope of [FRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of the entity's business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Specifically:

s Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding (SPPI), are subsequently measured at amortized cost;

¢ Debt instruments that are held within a bustness model whose objective is both to collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cash flows that are
SPPI, are subsequently measured at FVTOCI,

¢ All other debt instruments {e.g. debt instruments managed on a fair value basis or held for sale) and
equity investments are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

However, the Group may make the following irrevocable election / designation at initial recognition of a
financial asset on an asset-by-asset basis:

s The Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
that is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business
combination to which 1FRS 3 applies, in OCI; and

» The Group may itrevocably designate a debt instrument that meets the amortized cost or FVTOC!
criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch,

Debt instruments at amortized cost or at FVTOC]

For an asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI, its contractual terms should
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding (SPPI).

An assessment of business models for managing financial assets is fundamental to the classification of a
financial asset. The Group determines the business models at a level that reflects how groups of financial
assets are managed together to achieve a particutar business objective. The Group’s business model does
not depend on management's intentions for an individual instrument; therefore, the business model
assessment is performed at a higher level of aggregation rather than on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
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When a debt instrument measured at FVTOC! is derecognized, the cumulative gain/loss previously
recognized in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. In contrast, for an equity investment
designated as measured at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain/loss previously recognized in OCI is not
subsequently reclassified to profit or foss but transferred within equity.

The Group reassess its business models each reporting period to determine whether the business models
have changed since the preceding period.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI are subject to
impairment.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are:
s  assets with contractual cash flows that are not SPPI; or/and

s assets that are held in a business model ¢ther than held to collect contractual cash flows or held to
collect and sell; or

» assets designated at FVTPL using the fair value option.

These assets are measured at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on remeasurement recognized in
profit or oss. Fair value is determined in the manner described below.

Reclassifications

If the business model under which the Group holds financial assets- changes, the financial assets affected
are reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply
prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model that
results in reclassifying the Group's financial assets.

Impainnent

The Group recognizes loss allowances for ECL on the following financial instruments that are not
measured at FVTPL:
» deposits at banks

e |oans and advances to banks

e lpans and advances to customers

= customers' liability under acceptances
e debt investment securities

o loan comnitiments issued:; and

» financial guarantee contracts issued.
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No impairment loss is recognized on equity imvestments.
With the exception of Purchased or Criginated Credit tmpaired (POCI) financial assets (which are
considered separately below), ECLs are required to be measured through a loss allowance at an amount
equal to:
e 12-month ECL, ie. lifetime ECL that result from those default events on the financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months afier the reporting date, {referred to as Stage 1); or
e full lifettime ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from all possible default events over the life of the
financial instrument, (referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since inttial recognition. For all other financial instruments,
ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of the present value of credit losses. These are measured as the
sent value of the difference between the cash flows due to the Group under the contract and the cash flows
at the Group expects to receive arising from the weighting of multiple future economic scenarios,
discounted the asset's EIR.

e for undrawn loan commitments, the ECL is the difference between the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to the Group if the holder of the
commitment draws down the loan and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive if the loan
is drawn down; and

o for financial guarantees contracts, the ECL is the difference between the expected payments to
reimburse the holder of the guaranteed debt instrument less any amounts that the Group expects
to recetve from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

The Group measures ECL on an individual basis, or on a collective basis for portfolios of loans that share
similar economic risk characteristics, The measurement of the loss allowance is based on the present value
of the set's expected cash flows using the asset's original EIR, regardless of whether it is measured on an
individual sis or a collective basis.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets are
referred to as Stage assets. Evidence of credit-impainment includes observable data about the following
events:

» significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer
= abreach of contract such as a default or past due event

e the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider

e the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties; or

« the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

(5]
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tt may not be possibie to identify a single discrete event instead. the combined elfect ol several events may
we caused financial assets to become credit impaired.

The Group assesses whether debt instruments that are financial assets measured al amortized cost or
FVTOCI are credit-impaired at each reporting date. To assess if sovereign and corporate debl instruments
are credit impaired, the Group considers factors such as bond yields, edit ratings and the ability of the
borrower to raise funding.

Purchased or originated credit impaired {POCI) financial assets

POCI financial assets are treated differently because the asset is credit-impaired at initial recognition. For
these assets, the Group recognizes all changes in lifetime ECL since initial recognition as a loss allowance
with any changes recognized in profit or loss. A favorable change for such assets creates an impairment

gain,

Definition of default

Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of default is used in
measuring the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss allowance is based on 12-month
or lifetime ECL, as default is a component of the probability of default (PD) which affects both the
measurement of ECLs rid the identification of a significant increase in credit ris

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default:

s the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the Group; or
o the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full.

The definition of default is appropriately taitored to reflect different characteristics of different types of
assets. Overdrafts are considered as being past due once the customer has breached an advised limit or has
been advised of a limit smaller than the current amount outstanding.

When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Group takes into account both
qualitative and quantitative indicators.

The information assessed depends on the type of the asset, for example in corporate lending a gualitative
indicator used is the breach of covenants, which is not relevant for retail lending. Quantitative indicators,
such as overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same counterparty are key inputs in
this analysis. The Group uses a variety of sources of information to assess default which are either
developed internally or obtained from external sources.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Group monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts that
are subject to the impairment requirements to assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. If there has been a significant tncrease in credit risk the Group will measure
the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12Z-month ECL.
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fn assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date based on the remaining maturity of the instrument with the risk of a default occurring that was
anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current reporting date when the financial instrument was first
recognized.

In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-locking information that is
available without undue cost or effort, based on the Group's historical experience and expert credit
assessment including forward-looking information.

Modification and derecognition of financial assets

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a
financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise madified between initial recognition and maturity of the
financial asset. A modification affects the amount and/or timing of the contractual cash flows either
immediately or at a future date. In addition, the introduction or adjustment of existing covenants of an
existing toan would constitute a modification even if these new or adjusted covenants do not yet affect the
cash flows immediately but may affect the cash flows depending on whether the covenant s or is not met
(e.g. a change to the increase in the interest rate that arises when covenants are breached).

When a financial asset is modified the Group assesses whether this modification results in derecognition.
In accordance with the Group's policy a modification results in derecognition when it gives rise to
substantially different terms.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset's cash flows expire
{(including expiry arising from a modification with substantially different terms), or when the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantiaily all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and also
recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain/loss that had been recognized
in OCI and accumulated n equity is recognized in profit or loss, with the exception of equity investment
designated as measured at FVTOCI, where the cumulative gain/loss previously recognized in OCI is not
subsequently reclassified to profit or oss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than i its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to
repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues to recognize under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer
recognizes on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amoeunt allocated to the part that is no longer recognized and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognized and any cumulative gain/loss allocated to it that
had been recognized in OCI is recognized in profit or loss. A cumulative gain/loss that had been recognized
in OCl is allocated between the part that continues to be recognized and the part that is no longer recognized
on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

L
(OS]



BLC BANK S.A.L

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

This does notapply for equity investments designated as measured at FVTOCI, as the cumulative gain/loss
previously recognized in OCI is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Exchange of securities

Debt securities exchanged against securities with longer maturities with simitar risks, and issued by the
same issuer, are nof derecognized because they do not meet the conditions for derecognition.

Premiums and discounts derived from the exchange of said securities are deferred to be amortized as a
yield enhancement on a time proportionate basis, over the period of the extended maturities,

Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase Agreements

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase at a specified future date ("repos") are not derecognized
from the statement of financial position. The corresponding cash received, including accrued interest, is
recognized on the consolidated statement of financial position reflecting its economic substances as a loan
to the Group. The difference between the sale and repurchase prices is treated as interest expense and is
accrued over the life of the agreement using the effective interest rate method.

Conversely, securities purchased under agreements to resell at a specified date are not recognized in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The consideration paid, including accrued interest is recorded
in the statement of financial position reflecting the transaction's economic substance as a loan by the Group.
The difference between the purchase and resale prices s treated as interest income in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and is accrued over the life of the agreement using the effective interest rate
method.

Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering the
financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Group determines that the
borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off, A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Group may apply
enforcement activities to financial assets written off. Recoveries resulting from the Group's enforcement
activities will result in impairment gains.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

L.oss allowances for ECL are presented in the staternent of financial position as follows:

» for financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
assets;

s for debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: no loss allowance 15 recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position as the carrying amount is at fair value. However, the loss allowance is
included as part of the revaluation amount in the investments' revaluation reserve:

e for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: as a provision; and

» where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the Group cannot
identify the ECL on the loan commitment component separately from those on the drawn component:
the Group presents a combined loss allowance for both components.
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e The combined amount is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn
component. Any excess of the loss allewance over the gross amount of the drawn component is
presented as a provision.

E. Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity:

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definittons of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the proceeds
recelved, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Group's own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue, or cancellation of the Group's own equity
instruments.

The component parts of compound instruments {convertible notes) issued by the Group are classified
Separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial ltability and an equity instrument. A conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the entity's own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

Financial Liabilities:

Financial Liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability cther than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:
« such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency

that would otherwise arise; or

¢ the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

» it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and the entire

e combined contract is designated as at FVTPL in accordance with IFRS 9.

LJ
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G. Offsettine

Financial assets and liabilities are set-off and the net amount is presented in the consclidated statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group has a currently enforceable legal right to set-off the
recognized amounts or intends either to settie on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneousiy,

H. Fair Value measurement of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured by taking into account the characteristics of the asset
or liability that if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable 1nputs.

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurement are categorized into level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs
to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

s Level 1 - Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

e level2 - Inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
and liability either directly or indirectly; and

¢ Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liabzlity.

1. Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initiaily recognized at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date. The resulting gain or ioss is recognized
in profit or loss immediately untess the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in
which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded Derivatives

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts with embedded derivatives are
treated as consolidated derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of
the host contracts and the host contract:

¢ isnot measured at fair value with changes n fair value recognized in profit or loss.

e isnot an asset within the scope of [FRS 9.
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J.  Financial suarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payiments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL and not arising from a transfer of a financial asset, are subsequently measured at
the higher of:

e The amount of the loss allowance determined 1n accordance with IFRS 9; and

» Theamount initially recognized less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income recognized
in accordance with the Group's revenue recognition policies.

The Group has not designated any financial guarantee contracts as at FVTPL.

K. Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments in respect of foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk in fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net investments in foreign operations
as appropriate. Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow
hedges. The Group does not apply fair value hedge accounting of portfolio kedges of interest rate risk. In
addition, the Group does not use the exemption to covntinue using [AS 3% hedge accounting rules, i.e. the
Group applies IFRS 9 hedge accounting rules in fuft.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the relationship between the hedging
instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions.

Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the
hedging instrument 1s effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk, which is when the hedging retationships meet all of the following hedge
effectiveness requirements:

» there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument;

s the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic
relationship; and

o the hedge ratio of the l:edging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the
hedged item that the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the
Group actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

The Group rebalances a hedging relationship in order to comply with the hedge ratio requirements when
necessary. In such cases discontinuation may apply to only part of the hedging relationship.

For example, the hedge ratio might be adjusted in such a way that some of the volume of the hedged item
is no longer part of a hedging relationship, hence hedge accounting i1s discontinued only for the volume of
the hedged item that is no longer part of the hedging relationship.
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[fa hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness requirement relating to the hedge ratio but
the risk management objective for that designated hedging relationship remains the same, the Group
adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship (i.e. rebalances the hedge) so that it meets the gualifying
criteria again.

[n some hedge relationships the Group designates only the intrinsic value of aptions. In this case the fair
value change of the time value component of the option contract is deferred in OCI, over the term of the
hedge, to the extent that it relates to the hedged item and is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the hedged item does not result in the recognition of a non-financial item.

The Group's risk management policy does not include hedges of items that result in the recognition of non-
financial items, because the Group's risk exposures relate to financial items only.

The hedged items designated by the Group are time-period related hedged items, which means that-the
amount of the original time value of the option that relates to the hedged item ts amortized from equity to
profit or foss on a rational basis (e.g. straight-line) over the term of the hedging relationship.

In some hedge relationships the Group excludes from the designation the forward element of forward
contracts, or the currency basis spread of cross currency hedging instruments. In this case a similar
treatment is applied to the one applied for the time value of options. The treatment for the forward element
of a forward and the currency basis element is optional, and the option is applied on a hedge-by-hedge
basis, unlike the treatment for the time value of the options which is mandatory. For hedge relationships
with forwards or foreign currency derivatives such as cross currency interest rate swaps, where the forward
element ar the currency basis spread is excluded from the designation the Group generally recognizes the
excluded element in OClL.

Fair value hedges
The fair value change on qualifying hedging instruments is recognized in profit or loss except when the
hedging instrument hedges an equity instrument designated at FVTOCI in which case it is recognized in

OCI.

The carrying amount of a hedged item not already measured at fair value is adjusted for the fair value
change attributable to the hedged risk with a corresponding entry in profit or loss. For debt instruments
measured at FVTOCI, the carrying amount is not adjusted as it is already at fair value, but the part of the
fair value gain or loss on the hedged item associated with the hedged risk is recognized in profit or loss
instead of OCIL. When the hedged item s an equity instrument designated at FVTOCI, the hedging gain/loss
remains in OCI to match that of the hedging instrument.

Where hedging gains/losses are recognized in profit or loss, they are recognized in the same line as the
hedged item.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relationship (or a part thereof) ceases to
meet the qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances when the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised. The discontinuation is accounted for prospectively.
The fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of hedged items for which the EIR method is used (i.e.
debt instruments measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI) arising from the hedged risk is amortized to
profit or loss commencing no later than the date when hedge accounting is discontinued.
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Cash flow hedaes

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives and other qualifying hedging instruments
that are designated and quatify as cash flow hedges is recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve, a
consolidated compouent of OCI, limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item from
nception of the hedge less any amounts recycted to profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognized in OCI and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the
pericds when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognized hedged item. If the
Group no longer expects the transaction to occur that amount is immediately reciassified to profit or ioss.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relationship (or a part thereof} ceases to
meet the qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances when the hedging
istrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or where the occurrence of the designated hedged
forecast transaction is no longer considered to be highly probable.

The discentinuation is accounted for prospectively. Any gain/loss recognized in OCI and accumulated in
equity at that time remains n equity and is recognized when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognized in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction ts no longer expected to ocecur, the gain/loss
accumulated i equity is reclassified and recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Hedpes of net investments in foreign operations

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any
gain/loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognized in OCI and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve.

Gains and losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve are reclassified to profit or loss in the same way as exchange
differences relating to the foreign operation.

L. Non-Current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recoversd principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and
its sale is highly probable.

Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

M. Property and equipment

Property and equipment except for buildings acquired prior to 1999 are stated at historical cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Buildings acquired prior to 1999 are stated at their
revalued amounts, based on market prices prevailing during 1999 less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss, if any.
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Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost or valuation of property and equipment, other than
land and advance payments on capital expenditures less their residual values, if any, using the straight-iine
method over the useful fives estimated as foliows:

%
Buildings 2-4
Office improvements and installations 20
Furniture, equipment and machines 8-20
Computer equipment 20-33
Velhicles 10-20

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in
profit or loss.

N. Intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets other than goodwill
are amortized on a straight line over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Computer software 5 years
Key money 15 years

Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

0. Leases

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group
recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all fease arrangements in
which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases {defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less)
and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the fease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

+ fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives;

s variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, imitially measured using the index or rate
at the commencement date;

s the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
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+ the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options;
and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option
to terminate the lease

The lease hability is presented as a consolidated line item in the statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability (using effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payients made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use asset) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option,
in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate,

» the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due
to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revise discount rate is used).

e 2 lease contract is modified, and the lease modification is not accounted for as a consolidated lease,
in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using
revised discount rate.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use of
asset reflects that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date
of the lease.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included tn the measurement of the lease
liability and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognized as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers those payments cccurs and are included in the line 'General and
administrative expenses' in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

P. Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans

Real estate properties acquired through the enforcement of collateral over loans and advances, in
accordance with the Central Bank of Lebanon main circular 78, -are initially recognized at their fair value
as approved by Banking Control Commission and are subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated
unpairment tosses.

The acquisition of such assets is regulated by the local banking authorities that require the liquidation of
these assets within 2 years from Banking Contrel Comimission approval date. In case of default of
liguidation, the regulatory authorities require an appropriation of a speciat reserve from the yearly profits
reflected in equity.

Upon sale of repossessed assets, any gain or loss realized is recognized as a consolidated line item in the
statement of profit or loss. Gains resulting from the sale of repossessed assets are transferred to reserves
to be used for capital increase starting in the following financial year.
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Q. Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets,
other than investment properties and deferred taxes, to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. [f any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use.

[f the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment foss been
recognized for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment foss is recognized
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset 1s carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

R. Provision for emplovees' end-of-service indemnity

The provision for staff termination indemnities is based on the tiability that would arise if the employment
of all the staff were voluntary terminated at the reporting date. This provision is calculated in accordance
with the directives of the Lebanese Social Security Fund (the 'Fund') and Labor laws based on the number
of years of service multipiied by the monthly average of the last 12 months’ remunerations and Jess
contributions paid to the Lebanese Social Security National Fund and interest accrued by the Fund.

S.  Provisions

Provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are discounted where the impact is material.

T. Deferred restricted contributions

Restricted contributions derived from special and non-conventional deals arrangement conciuded with the
regulator are deferred until designated conditions for recognition are met, At the time income is received
it is deferred under "regulatory deferred liability"” and applied to the designated purpose according to the
regulator's requirements.

U. Net Interestincome

[nterest income and expense for all financial instruments except for those classified as held for trading or
those measured or designated as at FVTPL are recognized in "Net interest income' as ‘Interest income’ and
'Interest expense’ in the profit or loss account using the effective interest method. Interest on financial
instruments measured as at FVTPL is included within the fair value movement during the period, see "Net
interest and other gain on investment securities at fair value through profit or loss'.
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The effective interest rate (EIR} is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the
financial instrument through the expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The future cash flows are
estimated taking into account all the contractua! terms of the instrument.

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are
incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and all other
premiums or discounts. For financial assets at FVTPL transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss at
initial recognition.

The interest income/ interest expense is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of

noncredit impaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortized cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any
expected credit loss allowance), or to the amortized cost of financial liabilities.

V. Net fee and commission income

Fee and comimission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset
or liability (e.g. commissions and fees earned on loans) are included under interest income and expense.
QOther fee and commission income are recognized as the related services are performed.

W. Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. Dividends on equity
instruments designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized in profit or
loss, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the investment, in which case it is presented
in other comprehensive income.

X. Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly
in other comprehensive income, tn which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the statement of profit or loss because of the items that are never taxable or deductible.

The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
statement of financial position and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Y. Fiduciary accounts

Fiduciary assets held or invested on behalf of the Group's customers on a non-discretionary basis and
related risks and rewards belong to the account holders. Accordingly, these deposits are reflected as off-
balance sheel accounts.
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Z. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with original contractual maturities of three months or less.

4.  Critical accountine judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

[n the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the directors are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered fo be relevant. Actual resuits may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the

revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

A. Critical accounting judgments in applying the Group's accounting policies:

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (which are dealt with
separately below), that the directors have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in financial statements:

Going Concem:

Notwithstanding the uncertainties resulting from the events and conditions disclosed under Note I, these
financial statements have been prepared based on the going concern assumption which assumes that the
Group will have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The
Board of Directors are monitoring the situation and believe that they are taking all possible attainable
measures under these circumstances to maintain the viability of the Group and continue operations in the
current business environment,

Business model assessment:

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the resufts of the SPPI and the business
model test (Refer to the financial assets sections of note 3). The Group determines the business model at a
level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business
objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the
performance of the assets is cvaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the
performance of the assets and how these are managed. The Group monitors financial assets measured at
amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognized prior to their
maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the
objective of the business for which the asset was held.

44



-

BLC BANK S.A.L
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year cnded December 31,2022

Monittoring is part of the Group's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the
remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there
has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

Significant increase of credit risk:

As explained in note 3, ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for sfage | assets, or
lifetime ECL assets for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. [FRS 9 does not define what counstitutes a significant increase i
credit risk. [n assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking information. Refer to note
3 and note 41 for more details.

Establishing sroups of assets with similar credit risk characteristics:

When ECLs are measured on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped on the basis of shared
risk characteristics. Refer to note 3 for details of the characteristics considered in this judgement.

The Group monitors the appropriateness of the credit risk characteristics on an ongoing basis to assess
whether they continue to be similar.

Models and assumptions used;

The Group uses various medels and assumptions in estimating ECL. Judgement is applied in identifying
the most appropriate model for each type of asset, as well as for determining the assumptions used in these
models, including assumptions that relate to key drivers of credit risk. See note 3 and note 42 for more
details on ECL.

B. Key Scurces of Estimation Uncertainty:

The following are key estimations that the directors have used in the process of applying the Group's
accounting poticies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in financial
statements:

Macroecononiic Factors and Forward-Looking Information:

The measurement of expected credit losses for each stage and the assessment of significant increases in
credit risk must consider information about past events and current conditions as well as reasonabie and
supportable forecasts of future events and economic conditions. The estimation and application of forward-
looking information will require significant judgment.

Probability of default (PD):

PD constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given
time horizon, the calculation of which mncludes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future
conditions.

ILoss Given default:

[.GD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. [t is based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking inte account cash flows from collateral
and integral credit enhancements.
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5. Cash and balances with the Central Bank of Lebanon

Cash on hand

Central Bank of Lebanon :
Current accounts

Terms Placements
Accrued interest receivable

Allowance  for
credit losses (Note 42)

expected

December 31,
2021

of which of which
compulsory/ compulsory/
Regulatory Regulatory

Balance Deposits Balance Deposits

LBP’000 LBP’000 LBP’000 LBP’000

502,948,036 - 42,589,527 -
1,222,397,302 174,836,879 939,506,462 79,187,138
1,268,770,131 399,635,205 1,403,927,244 463,203,269

16,092,391 - 24,684,049 -
3,010,207,860 574,472,084  2,411,107,282 542,390,407

(11,522,428) (7,700,342)

2,998,685,432 574,472,084  2,403,406,940 542,350,407

Compulsory deposits under current accounts with Central Bank of Lebanon are in Lebanese Pounds and non-
interest earning. These deposits are computed on the basis of 25% and [5% of the average weekly sight and
term customers’ deposits in Lebanese Pounds subject to certain exemptions, in accordance with local banking

regulations. These deposits are not available for use in the Bank's day-to-day operations.

Regulatory deposits under term placements with Central Bank of Lebancn are made in accordance with local
banking regulations which require banks to maintain interest earning placements in foreign currency to the
extent of 14% of customers' deposits in foreign currencies, certificates of deposit and borrowings acquired

from non-resident financial institutions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

6. Deposits with banks and financial institutions

December 31,
2022 2021
LBP’0G0 LBP’00G0
Current accounts with banks and financial institutions 25,608,959 43,115,960
Current accounts with Parent Bank (Note 46) 5,384,418 5,729,108
Current accounts with related banks and financial institutions (Note
314,101 648,976
46)
31,807,478 49,494 044
Margin accounts - 814,742
- 814,742
31,807,478 50,308,786
Provision for expected credit losses {(Note 42) (158,493) {213,837)
31,648,985 50,094,949
Above balances are allocated between onshore and offshore accounts as follows:
December 31,
2022 2021
LBP’000 LBP*000
Onshore 6,447,933 7,176,715
Offshore 25,359,545 43,132,071
31,807,478 50,308,786
7. Loan to a bank
December 31,
2022 2021
LBP000 LBP*000
Principal outstanding - 700,000
Accrued interest receivable - 4,766
- 704,766
Provision for expected credit losses {(Note 42) - (13,320)
- 691,446

The above loan is secured against a pledge of notes receivable against housing loans granted by the-
borrower.

The loan principal balance matures over 10 yearly payments of LBP 700 million each with final payment
in year 2022.
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8. Loans and advances to customers

LLoans and advances to customers at amortized cost consist of the following:

Credit visk stage 1 & 2:
Retail loans:

Housing loans

Personal loans

Car loans

Credit cards

Education loans

Staff loans
Private Banking
Small and meduim enterprises
Corporates

Credit risk stage 3:
Substandard
Doubtful

Bad

Accrued interest receivable

December 31,2022

Exposures (Net

Allowance for

of Interest in Expected
Suspense) Credit Losses Net

LBP*0060 LBP’000 LBP’000
169,217,565 (1,752,787) 167,464,778
31,403,209 (1,572,127) 29,831,082
9,333,016 (346,921) 8,986,095
1,803,911 (28,477) 1,775,434
2,716,501 (22,793) 2,693,708
841,916 - 841,916
10,640 - 10,640
46,151,062 (715,942) 45,435,120
154,552,832 (3,410,312) 151,142,520
416,030,652 (7.849,359) 408,181,293
77,433,357 (1,323,441) 76,109,916
155,061,330 (81,065,767) 73,995,563
52,844,573 (52,844,493) 80
285,339,260 (135,233,701) 150,105,559
701,369,912 (143,083,060) 558,286,852
6,400,477 - 6,400,477
707,770,389 (143,083,060) 564,687,329
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December 3] ,2021

Exposures (Net
of Interest in

Allowance for
Expected

Suspense) Credit Losses Net
LBP’000 LBP’000 LBP’000
Credit risk stage 1 & 2
Retail loans:
Housing loans 331,051,347 (5,943,168) 325,108,179
Personat loans 68,008,184 (3,538,238 64,469,946
& Car Joans 22,927,285 {743,213 22,184,072
Credit cards 3,652,872 (105,299 3,547,573
Education loans 5,534,799 (65,064) 5,469,735
Staff loans 2,079,850 - 2,079,850
o Private Banking 12,655 - 12,655
Smail and medium enterprises 79,770,676 (2,122,922) 77,647,754
Corporates 314,082,267 {17,652,439) 296,429,828
= 827,119,935 (30,170,343) 796,949,592
Credit risk stage 3:
Substandard [15,658,409 (18,827,062) 96,831,347
Doubtful 139,370,335 (62,533,180) 76,837,155
Bad 43,097,674 (43,082,521) 15,153
298,126,418 (124,442,763) 173,683,655
1,125,246,353 (154,613,106) 970,633,247
Accrued mnterest receivable 12,267,132 - 12,267,132
1,137,513,485 (154,613,106) 982,900,379

The above balances include loans to related parties of LBP 10 million (2021: LBP 3.7 billion) (Note 46).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

9. Investment sccurities

December 31,

2022 2021
Local Foreign Loeal Foreign
Currency Currencies Total Currency Currencies Total
LBP'00O LBP GO0 LBP0O0 LBP000 LBP000 LBP 00O
At fair value through
other comprehensive 12,093,260 2,326,687 14,419,947 4954316 13,759,217 18,714,133
income
Accrued interest
receivable 66,475 - 66,475 85,155 - 85,195
12,159,735 2,326,687 14,480,422 5,039,511 13,759,817 15,799,328
At amortized cost 639,115,137 657,163,517 1,316,278,654 732,419,428 774418361 1,506,837,789
Accrued mterest
receivable 21,884,122 407,667 22,291,789 23,467.330 837,290 24,304,620
680,999,259 657,571,184 1,338,570,443 755,886,758 775,255,651 1,531,142,40%
693,158,994 659,857,871 1,353,056,865 760,526,269 789,015,468 1,549,941,737
A. Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income:
December 31,
2022 2021
L.ocal Foreign Local Foreign
Currency Currencies Total Currency Currencies Total
LBPGOO LBP°000 LBP’000 LBP000 LBF’000 LBP000
Unquoted equities 7,149,427 830,116 7.979,543 {1,713,693) 9,275,005 7,561,312
Lebanese government
bonds - 25,100,802 25,100,802 - 25,100,802 25,100,802
Lebanese treasury
bills 4,943,833 - 4,943,833 6,668,009 - 6,668,009
12,093,260 25930918 38,024,178 4954316 34,375,807 39,330,123
Accrued interest
receivable 66,475 - 66,475 85,195 - 85,195
Allowance for
expected credit losses
{(Note 42) - (23,604,231) (23,604,231) - (20,615,990) (20,615,990)
12,159,735 2,326,687 14 486,422 5,039,511 13,759817 18,799 328
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BLC BANK S.A.L
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended December 31, 2022

Debt securities at amortized cost are segregated over the remaining period to maturity as follows:

December 31, 2022
Loeal currency Foreign currencies
Average Average
Remaining Period to Nominal Amortized Coupon Nominal Amortized  Coupon
M aturity Value Cost rate Value Cost rate
LBP'600 LBP'000 % LBP'000 LBP'00Q %
Lebanese treasury bills:
| yearto 3 years 23,155,020 23,970,241 832 - - -
3 years to 5 years 1,648,000 1,648,000 7.46 - - -
Above 10 years 15,124,490 15,436,700 10.50 - - -
39,927,510 41,054,941 - -
Lebanese government bonds:
Past due (defauked) - - - 113,452,943 113,452,542 -
1 year to 3 years (defaulted) - - - 10,552,500 10,738,735 -
3 years to 5 years {defaulted) - - - 215,878,523 216,010,468 -
5 years to 10 years (defaulted) - - - 98,536,230 98,625,855 -
Above 10 years (defaulted) - - - 303,987,373 304,125,129 -
- - 742,407,571 742,953,129
Certificates of deposit
issued by Central Bank of
Lebanon:
1 yearto 3 years - - - 22,612,500 22,612,500 3.24
5 years to 10 years - B - 147,885,750 147,885,750 3.00
Above 10 years 610,000,000 618,060,196 10.94 - - -
£10,000,000 618,060,196 170,498,250 170,498,250
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

Remaining Period to
Maturity

Lebanese treasury bills:
Up to one year
1 year to 3 years
3 yearsto 5 years
5 years to 10 years
Above 10 years

Lebanese government bonds:

Past due (defaulted)

3 years to 5 years (defaulted)
5 years to 10 years (defaulted)
Above 10 years (defauhed

Certificates of deposit issued
by Ceniral Bank of Lebanon:
Up to ane year

1 year to 3 years

5 years to 10 years

Above 10 years

December 31, 2021

Lacal cuire ncy

Foreign currencies

Average Average
Nominal Amortized Coupon Nominal Amortized  Coupon
Value Cost rate Value Cost mte
LBP'OGD LBP'OOC % LBP000 LBP'Q00 Yo
72,725,000 72,843,942 6.11 - - -
3,155,000 3,153,754 7.12 - - -
20,819,020 21,900,345 7.08 - - -
829,000 826,000 7.46 - - -
15,124 496 15,451,638 10.19 - - -
112,652,510 114,178,679 - -
- - - 15,075,000 15,075,000
- - - 212,863,523 213,031,856 -
- - - 98,536,230 98,639,251 -
- - - 402,365,318 410,339,474 -
- - 728,840,071 743,085,581
- - - 1,206,000 1,202,814 7
- - - 22,612,500 22,612,500 6
- - - 147,885,750 147,885,750 7
610,000,000 618,114,708 10.7% - - -
610,000,000 618,114,708 171,704,250 171,701,064

No interest income on defaulted Lebanese government bonds is being recognized by the Group for both

year 2022 and 2021.
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BLC BANK S.A.L

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31,2022

10. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss :

December 31,
2022 2021

Comeney Comengies T Cumney Cunengies T

LBP 0G0 LBP 000 LBP’000 LBP? 000 LBP’000 LBP?000
Quoted equities - 51,077,276 51,077,276 - 10,590,143 10,590,143
Unquoted equities 1,235,275 2,597,590 3,832,865 1,370,42G 3,016,444 4,386,864
Lebanese
government bonds - 12,811,775 12,811,775 - 38,441,250 38,441,250
Mutual Funds - 339,188 339,188 - 309,038 309,038

1235275 66,825,829 68,061,104 1,370,420 52,356,875 53,727.295

Unquoted equities represent the Group's share in startups established based on co-sharing agreement with
the regulator providing the funding.

11. Assets under leverage arrangement with the Central Bank of Lebanon

December 31,

Assets under leverage arrangements:
Term placements with Central Bank of Lebanon

2022

2021

LBP’000

128,067,000

LBP’000

231,709,000

Lebanese treasury bills at amortized cost 75,744,530 88,845,980
203,811,530 320,554,980
Less: Borrowings under leverage arrangements 203,811,530 320,554,980

Net

Assets under leverage arrangement consist of term placements with the Central Bank of Lebanon and
Lebanese Treasury bills in LBP subject to interest rates between 1.26% and 10.66% originated from and
are pledged against the corresponding leverage arrangements with the Central Bank of Lebanon for the
same amounts in LBP (bearing a 2% interest rate), with the purpose of providing yield adjustment on
certain transactions related to either fresh deposits in foreign currency or sale of foreign currency against
LBP piaced in term deposits at the Central Bank of Lebanon and/or Government securities.
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BLC BANK S.A.L
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements lor the year ended December 31, 2022

The leverage and related pledged assets mechanisim resulted in a yield enhancement on the folowing

financial assets:
December 31,

2022 2021

LBP’000 LBP*000
Term placements with Central Bank of Lebanon in U.S.dollar 61,882,875 73,038,375
Term placements with Central Bank of Lebanon in Euro 20,883,195 22,155,200
Term placements with Central Bank of Lebanon in LBP
originated from the sale of foreign currency 68,383,952 150,041,583
Term placements with Central Bank of Lebanon in LBP
originated from the swap of certificates of deposit in foreign 19,682,000 19,682,000
currency

170,832,023 265,817,158

The Group signed with Central Bank of Lebanon a netting agreement allowing to offset the "assets under
Jeverage arrangement” versus the borrowing from the Central Bank. The agreement covered financial
assets and liabilities resulting from transactions that took place before the netting agreement date that have
not vet matured. As such the Group has presented "time deposits with Central Bank of Lebanon" and term
borrowing from Central Bank of Lebanon" on a net basis.



BLC BANK S.A.L
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended December 31, 2022

12. Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
The acquisition of assets in settlement of loans is regulated by the banking regulatory authorities and these
should be hiquidated within 2 years. [n case of default of liquidation, a regulatory reserve should be

appropriated from the yearly net profits (Note 26).

The movement of assets acquired in satisfaction of loans during 2022 and 2021 was as follows:

Carrying
Cost Impairment Value
LBP'¢00 LBFP'000 LBP'000

Balance January 1, 2021 77,802,823 (7,938,977) 69,863,846

Disposals (7,573,530) 97,397 (7,476,133)
Balance December 3}, 2021 70,229,293 (7,841,580) 62,387,713
Additions 1,680,263 - 1,680,263
Disposals (2,581,453) 48,458 {2,532,995)
Balance December 31, 2022 69,328,103 (7,793,122) 61,534,981

Gain on disposal of assets acquired in satisfaction of loans during the year amounted to LBP 9.7 billion
mncluded in profit or toss (2021: LBP 9.2 billion).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

13. Leases

The Group only operates as a lessee for the Group's branches. The average lease term is 7 years.

Set out below, are the carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and lease liabilities and their

related movement during the year:

Balance Januaryl, 2021

Other movement

Amortization of right-of-use assets
Termination of rent contracts
Accretion of interest (Note 29)
Payments

Batance December 31, 2021
Termination of rent contracts
Amortization of right-of-use assets
Other movement

Accretion of interest (Note 29)
Payments

Balance December 31, 2022

The following are the amounts recognized in profit or loss during the year:

Amartization of right-of-use assets
Interest portion of lease Jiabilities

Right-of-use Lease
assets liabilities
LBP'000 LBP’000
18,616,649 19,678,708
174,025 174,025
(1,278,667) -
(9,352,387) (9,352,387)
- 1,026,710
- (2,702,774)
8,159,620 8,824,282
(886,167) (886,166)
(1,216,250) -
- 587,432
- (1,398,540)
6,057,203 7,127,008
2022 2021
LBP*000 LBP'000
1,216,250 1,278,667
587,432 1,026,710
1,803,682 2,305,377
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

14. Property and equipment

Balance Disposals Balance
January 1, and December 31,
2022 Additions  Adjustments  Transflers 2022
LBP'000 LBP'000 LBP'000 LBP'000 LBP'00O
Cost/Revaluation:
Owned properties 87,770,621 - (1,059,255) - 86,711,366
Computer hardware 18,469,195 264,625 (2,459,461) . 16,274,359
Machine and equipment 6,567,388 10,764 (38,851) - 0,539,301
Furniture and fixture 6,497,100 - {430,845} - 6,066,255
Vehicles 750,521 - (28,372) - 722,149
Freeholdand leasehold 57 571 854 72,081 : 37,643,935
mprovements
Advance payments 308,264 91,128 - (165,375) 234017
157,934,943 438,598 (4,016,784)  (165375) 154,191,382
Accumulated depreciation  (73,317,082)  (5,338,216) 3,066,061 - {75,589,237)
Allowance for impairment (65,308) - - - (65,308)
~(73,382,390) (5,338,216) _ 3,066,061 -  {75,654,545)
Capital work-in-progress 44 473 - - - 44473
Carrying values 84,597,026 78,581,310
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Balance Disposals Balance
January I, and December 31,
2021 Additions  Adjustments  Transfers 2021
LBP'00O0 LBP'OOO LBP'000 LBPO00 LBP'000
Cost/Revaluation:
Owned properties 87,770,621 - - - 87,770,621
Computer hardware 18,447.251 79,548 {57,604} - 18,469,195
Machine and equipment 6,516,757 53,477 (2,846} - 6,567,388
Furniture and fixture 6,518,106 - {21,0006) - 6,497,100
Vehicles 983,974 - (233,453) - 750,521
Freehold and leasehold
improverments 35,919,380 699,551 (58,110) 1,011,033 37,571,854
Advance payments 1,240,812 8,367 - (940,915) 308,264
157,396,901 840,943 ~ {373,019 70,118 157,834,943
Accumulated depreciation  (67,620,887)  (5,943,127) 246,932 - (73,317,082)
Allowance for impairment (65,308) - - - (65,308)
(67,686,195)  (5,943,127) 246,932 - (73,382,390)
Capital work-in-progress 114,591 - - {70,118) 44,473
Carrying values 89,825,297 84,597,026

Gain on disposal of property and equipment during the year amounted to LBP 1.6 billion inciuded in profit
or loss (2021: loss of LBP 122 million).

15. Intangible assets

Carrying
Carrying Value
Value January Amortization December 31,
31,2022 Additions for the year 2022
LBP'000 LBP'000 LBP'00O LBP'O0O0
Computer software 3,178,780 41,833 (1,501,429) 1,719,184
3,178,780 41,833 (1,501,429) 1,719,184
Carrying
Carrying Value
Value January Amortization December 31,
1,2021 Additions for the year 2021
LBP'000 LBP'000 LLBP'000 LBP'000
Computer software 4,671,738 145,571 {1,638,529) 3,178,780
4,671,738 145,571 (1,638,529) 3,178,780
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

16. Other assets

December 31,

2022 2021
LBP’ 000 LBP000

Prepayments 8,760,390 6,417,474 )
Commission receivable 1,058,046 816,592 '
Sundry debtors (a) 24,063,650 26,678,990
Foreign exchange position receivabies (b) 12,602,200 20,523,767
Regulatory blocked deposit {c) 4,500,000 4,500,000
Accrued interest subsidy from Central Bank of Lebanon - 70,000
Deferred tax assets on other comprehensive income - 350,095 B
Fair valuation of forward exchange contracts 65,879 -

51,050,165 59,356,918

(a) Sundry debtors include medical costs receivable from the Lebanese National Social Security Fund for
the amount of LBP 11 billion. It represents medical expenses settled by the Group to employees and
expected to be recovered within three years from the date they were incurred because of substantial
settlement delays by the National Soctal Security Fund.

(b) Foreign exchange position receivables as at December 31, 2022, consist of amounts receivable from the
Central Bank of Lebanon, mainly as a result of application of Basic Circulars 151, 158 and 161,

(c) Regulatory blocked deposit represents a non-interest earning compulsory deposit placed with the
Lebanese Treasury upon the establishment of a subsidiary that is in the process of liquidation. This deposit
will be refunded upon finalizing the liquidation of the subsidiary, according to article 132 of the Lebanese
Code of Money and Credit.

17. Assets and Liabilities held for sale

December 31,
2022 2021
LBP’000 LBP?000
Investements properties - 20,995,135
Deferred assets adjustements to reach fair value less cost to sell - 926,183
Assets held for sale - 21,921,318
Other Liabilities - 776,065
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale - 776,065
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

in 2017, the Group committed to a plan to sell its controlling interest in USB Bank PLC{Cyprus). In august
2018, the bank’s board of Directors approved (he sale and the Group received a total consideration of LBP
98 billion (EUR 57 million) in 2019 representing the net assets of USB Holding PLC.

On May 17, 2022, the Bank's directors approved the sale of its entire participation in the share capital of
USB Holdings PLC for a total consideration of EUR 18,318,263 after the payment to the minority
shareholders.

On 10 June 2022, BLC Bank and Astro Bank have entered into a share sale and purchase agreement of
which Astro Bank acquired the 319,429,978 ordinary shares held by BLC in the share capital of USB
Holdings PLC, constituting 99.25% of the issued share capital of USB.

Gain arising from disposal of investment in USB Holdings PLC during 2022 amounted to LBP 393 million.

18. Deposits from Banks and firancial institutions

December 31,
2022 2021

LBP’000 LBP’000
Short term deposits from Parent Bank (Note 46) - 67,000,000
Currents deposits 1,136,898 2,028,824
Short term deposits 101,064,979 952,213
Accrued interest payable (Note 46) 123,288 2,434,626

102,325,165 72,415,663
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19. Customers’ Accounts

Customers' accounts at amortized cost are detailed as follows:

Deposits:

Current/demand deposits

Term deposits

Collateral against loans and advances

Margins and other accounts:
Margins against import letters of credit

December 31,

2022

2021

Margins against letters of guarantee issued

Other margins

Blocked accounts

Accrued interest Payable

LBP’000

1,871,643,846
2,312,118,032
30,944,064

9,282
25,904,440
1,116,589
10,462,248

1,267,253

LBP’000

1,433,898,902
2,704,235,654
41,796,903

9,282
26,870,793
1,253,951
10,376,177

4,019,570

4,253,465,754

4,222,461,232

Rlocked accounts include balances amounting to LBP 5.4 billion (2021: LBP 5.4 billion) representing
undisbursed loans to customers.

The above balances inciude deposits from related parties of LBP 64 billion (2021: LBP 67 billion) (Note
46).

Customers' deposits include related party deposits detailed as follows:

December 31,
2022 2021
LBP’000 LBP’000

Demand deposits 2,901,612 8,897.710
Term deposits 60,448,091 58,185,556
Collateral against loans and advances 505,719 79,144
Accrued interest payable 161,167 302,831

64,016,589 67,465,241
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Brackets of deposits were as follows:

December 31, 2022

Local currency

Foreign currencies

% to
Total Total % to Total
Deposits Deposits  Total Deposits Deposits Total
LBP'0O0O Yo LBP'000 %o LBP'000
Less than LBP 250 million 338,625,945 38 972,617.363 34 1,511,243 308
From LBP 250 million to LBP 1.3 billion 356,367.049 25 937,632.557 33 1,293,998 606
Above LBP L.5 billion 5186415387 37 529,581,453 33 {.448,222 840
1,413,634,381 100 2.839,831,373 100 4253 465,734
December 31,2021
Local currency Foreign currencies
% to
Total Total % to Total
Deposits Deposits  Total Deposits Deposits Total
LBP'GOO %a LBP'000 %o LBP'0OGO
Less thap LBP 250 million 412,836,410 34 750,731,150 26 1,203,567,560
From LBP 250 million to LBP [.5 billion 349,133,627 29 1,052.628,223 35 1,401,761,850
Above LBP 1.5 billion 456,441,656 37 1,160,690,166 39 1.617,131,822
1218,411,693 100 3,004,049,539 100 4222461232

Deposits from customers include coded deposit accounts in the aggregate amount of LBP 30 billion as at
December 31,2022 (2021: LBP 58 billion). These accounts are subject to the provisions of Article 3 of the
Banking Secrecy Law dated September 3, 1956 which stipulates that the Group’s management, in the
normal course of business, cannot reveal the identities of these depositors to third parties, including its

independent public accountants.

20. Borrowing from Central Bank of Lebanon

Soft loans from Central Bank of Lebanon (a)
Borrowings from Central Bank of Lebanon (b)

December 31,
2022 2021
LBP’000 LBP000
1,232,408 4,103,030
181,745,050 215,262,498
182,977,458 219,365,528
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(a) Outstanding facilities in Lebanese Pounds granted from the Central Bank of Lebanon in the amount
of LBP 1.2 billion (LBP 4.1 billion as at December 31, 202 1) are in accordance with Centrat Bank of
Lebanon Basic Decision No. 6116 of March 7, 1996 and its amendments by which the Group benefited
from credit facilities granted against loans the Group has granted, on its own responsibility, to its
customers, pursuant to certain conditions, rules and mechanism. These facilibes bear interest rate of
0% computed annually and paid monthly.

(b) Outstanding facilities in Lebanese Pounds granted from the Central Bank of Lebanon in the amount
of LBP 182 biltion (2021: LBP 215 billion) are in accordance with Central Bank of Lebanon Basic
Decision No. 6116 of March 7, 1996 and its amendments by which the Group benefited from credit
facilities granted against loans the Group has granted, on its own responsibility, to its customers,
pursuant to certain conditions, rules and mechanism. These facilities bear interest rate of 1% computed
annually and paid monthly. Part of these facilities are collateralized by Lebanese treasury bills which
will mature in 2022 and certificates of deposit issued by Central Bank of Lebanon.

The remaining contractual maturities of above borrowings are as follows:

December 31,

2022 2021
LBP’ 000 LBP’000
Up to 3 months 15,888,911 173,558
3 months to | year 374,975 34,717,844
1 year to 3 years 3,548,590 14,609,960
3 years to 5 years 9,251,781 1,797,630
Over 5 years 153,913,201 168,066,536
182,977,458 219,365,528
The movement of borrowings was as follows:
2022 2021
LBP’000 LBP?000
Balance January 1} 219,365,528 304,738,835
Additions 2,981,900 2,486,882
Settlements (39,369,970) (87,860,189)
Balance December 31 182,977,458 219,365,528
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21. Other liabilities

Sundry accounts payable

Advance on sale of USB

Accrued expenses

Provision for tax- Article 20 of Law No. 6/2020

Provision for ilncome tax (a)

Withheld taxes payable

Deferred tax liability on accrued interest receivable

Deferred tax lability on future dividend distribution of subsidiaries
Deferred tax liability

Payable to personnel and directors

Checks and incoming payment orders in course of settlement
Deferred income

Due to the National Social Securtty Fund

Fair valuation of forward exchange contracts

Blocked capital subscriptions for companies under incorporation
Payable to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary under liquidation

(2) Below is the reconciliation of income tax expense:

December 31,

2022 2021
LBP’000 LBP000
16,099,291 11,917,970

- 17,719,717
29,090,106 23,133,817
7,409 7,409
7,604,653 7,637,497
699,278 2,067,962
2,679,592 5,237,560
853,976 805,095
1,639,606 1,639,606
3,593,263 4,105,813
468,692 1,411,147
874,809 870,993
1,169,785 606,433
- 1,611
409,215 409,714

- 7,440
65,189,674 77,579,784

December 31,2021

2022

2021

Loss before tax

Incomne tax on enacted applicable rates

LBP’(00

(97,539,887)

LBP’0060

(192,198,968)

Income tax expense
Unpaid prior year income tax

Other additional provisions/adjustments

Income tax liability
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41,259 74,103
41,259 74,103
7,563,211 7,563,211
- 183
7,604,470 1,637,497
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The movement ol current tax liability was as follows:

December 31,2021
2022 2021
LBP’ 000 LBP*000
Balance JanuaryT, 7,637,457 10,707,571
Charge for the year 41,259 74,103
Settlements {74,286) (3,144,177)
Balance December 31 7,604,470 7,637,497

Provision for income tax includes provision for tax contingencies in the amount of LBP 6.4billion that was
recorded during 2020.

22. Provisions

December 31,
2022 2021
LBP'000 LBP’000
Provision for end-of-service indemnity (a) 20,278,484 3,764,895
Provision for risk and charges (b) 36,126,382 29,111,657
Expected credit losses on commitments and financial guarantees 824,659 1,206,233
Provision for loss on foreign currency position 294,042 294,042

57,523,567 34,376,827

a) The meovement of the pravision for end-of-service indemnity was as follows:

2022 2021
LBP’000 LBP?000
Balance January 1 3,764,895 3,262,874
Additions- net (Notes 36-37) 17,363,780 863,052
Settlements (850,191) (361,031)
Balance December 31 20,278,484 3,764,895
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(b) The movement of the provision for risk and charges was as follows:

2022 2021
LBP*000 LBP’000
Balance January 1 29,111,657 8,412,440
Additions/(write-back) 11,051,500 20,804,000
Settlements {4,036,775) -
Difference of exchange - (104,783)
Balance December 31 36,126,382 29,111,657

Provisions for risks and charges are mainly against tax contingencies.

23. Share capital
As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group's ordinary share capital consists of 214,000,000 shares of a
par value of LBP 1,000 each fully paid.

The Group followed the requirements of Central Bank of Lebanon regarding the increase in common
equity Tier I as at December 31, 2018 by 20% n foreign currencies that was later extended to February
28, 2021. The Group’s Extraordinary General Assembly of sharcholders held on January 30, 2020 called
additional cash contribution from shareholders in the amount of USD 93.86 million. Up to December 31,
2020, the Group's shareholders settled USD 45.96 million (LBP 69.29 billion) in the form of cash
contribution and the remaining balance of USD 47.9 mtllion (LBP 72.2 billion) was settled in 2021 by the
shareholders.

24, Preferred shares

December 31,
Year Number of Annual
of Issue Shares Return 2022 2021
Y% LBP'0O00 LBP'000
Series "D 2016 750,000 6.75 113,062,501 113,062,501
Series "E" 2018 263,510 7.00 39,724,132 39,724,132

152,786,633 152,786,633

The above are Tier | non-cumulative preferred shares with an issue price of USD 100 per share and a
nominal value of LBP1,000 each.

The preferred shares may be redeemed during the 60 days period following the annual general meeting held
to approve the Group's financial statements after 5 years for issue date and each subsequent year thereafter.

[n the event of liquidation of the Group, holders of preterred shares series "D" and "E" rank senior to the
holders of common shares.
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25. Treasury shares

No. of shares Cost
LBP'0G0
Balance Januaryl, 2021 21,365,000 76,855,365
Eftect of exchange rates changes - {972,984)
Balance December 31, 2021 21,365,000 75,882,381
Balance December 31, 2022 21,365,000 75,882,381
26. Non-distributable reserves
Reserve for
Reserve For Special Assets
General Reserve for requieredin
Legal Banking Loans and  Saftisfaction
Reserve Risks Advances of Loans Total
LBP'000 LBP'000 LEP'000 LBP'000O LBP'000
Balance - January 1,202] 26,852,521 173,175,224 7,303,478 55,606,319 262,937,542
Other movement - 36,053 - - 36,053
Reallocation of reserves - 4,570,382 - (4,570,382) -
Balance - December. 31, 2021 26,852,521 177,781,659 7,303,478 51,035,937 262,973,595
Reallocation of reserves - 1,504,493 - (1,504,493) -
Balance - December 31,2022 26,852,521 179,286,152 7,303,478 49,531,444 262,973,595

a) The legal reserve is constituted in conformity with the requirements of the Lebanese Money and credit
Law and the Group's articles of incorporation on the basis of 10% of the yearly net profits. Subsidiaries are
also subject to legal reserve requirements. This reserve is not avatlable for dividend distribution.

(b) Based on the Central Bank of Lebanon Circular No73 and Banking Control Commission memo
Nol12/2010 relating to reserve allocation for doubtful debts, the Group has allocated an amount of
LBP7.3billion for the vear 2020 to special reserve for the uncovered portion of its doubtful debts
outstanding as at June 30, 2003 and not yet resolved. This reserve is not available for distribution.

(¢) The reserve for assets acquired in satisfaction of loans represents appropriation against assets acquired
in settlement of debt in accordance with the circulars of the Lebanese Banking Control Commission.
Appropriations against assets acquired in settlement of loans shall be transferred to unrestricted reserves

upon the disposal of the related assets.

27. Dividends paid

The Group distributed nil dividends during 2022 and 2021 to ordinary and preferred shares owners.
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28. Interest income

Interest income from:

Loans and advances to customers

Deposits with Central Bank

Investment securities (excluding FVTPL)
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Lean to a bank

Loans and advances to related parties

Interest income fromi:

Loans and advances to customers

Deposits with Central Bank

Investment securities {excluding FVTPL)
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Loan to a bank

Loans and advances to related parties

Interest income on investment securities:

Lebanese treasury bills

Certificates of deposit issued by Central Bank of Lebanon

Corporate bonds and asset backed securities

2022
Interest Withheld
Income Tax Total
LBP'(00 LEBP'000 LBP'00O0
48,977,577 - 48,977,577
87,136,033 (8,223,127) 78,912,906
88,535,961 (7,827,145) 80,708,816
53,193 - 53,193
2,801 (757) 2,044
15,181 - 15,181
224,720,746 {16,051,029) 208,669,717
2021
Interest Withheld
Income Tax Total
LBP'O00 LBP'000 LBP'000
60,010,177 - 60,010,177
102,196,908 (11,230,360) 00,966,548
98,147,326 (9,868,130) 88,279,196
12,818 - 12,818
19,103 (2,565) 16,538
143,374 - 143,374
260,529,706 (21,101,055} 239,428,651
2022 2021
LBP'000 LBP'000
11,233,499 16,961,860
77,302,149 81,139,769
313 45,697
88,535,961 08,147,326

Interest income on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is included under "Net interest and
other loss on investrment securities at fair value through profit or loss" (Note 34).
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29. Interest expense

[nterest expense on:
Customers' accounts at amortized cost
Deposits and borrowings from banks

Deposits and borrowings from Parent Bank and subsidiaries (Note 46)

Special foan from Central Bank of Lebanon
Customers' accounts - related parties (Note 46)
Lease hability (Notel3)

30. Fee and commission income

Commission income from:

Fee income on customers' transactions

Fee income on loans and advances

Commission earned on insurance pelicies

Fee income on letters of guarantee

Fee mcome on documentary credits

Commission on transactions with banks

Commission on capital markets customers' transactions (Note 38)
Other

31. Fee and commission expense

Brokerage fees

Commission on transactions with banks and financial institutions
Commission paid to cars dealers

Other
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2022 2021
LBP'000 LBP'000
21,064,089 47,762,496

991,629 269,787
2,245,794 8,291,933
2,133,643 2,860,435

11 3,102,985
587,432 1,026,710
27,022,698 63,314,346

2022 2021
LBP'000 LBP'000
52,821,589 22,383,477

16,442,765 9,566,220
1,541,327 2,081,201
1,652,680 1,933,073

8,587 124 487
31,710 28,515

335,166 272,443

952,312 658,850
73,786,136 37,048,266

2022 2021
LBP'000 LBP' 000

282,115 333,964
830,187 560,579
237,774 237,698
3,889,175 414,972
5,239,251 1,547,213
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32. Losses arising from the derecognition of investment securities measured at amortized cost

2022 2021
LBP'000 LBP'000
Lebanese government bonds (a) - 12,748,281
Certificates of deposit issued by Central Bank of Lebanon (a) - 1,773,285
- 14 521,566

a) During 2021, the Group sold certificates of deposits issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon and
Lebanese government bonds with a nominal value of LBP 50 billion and LBP 13 billion respectively,
classified at amortized cost, which resulted in losses of LBP 1.8 billion and LBP 1.27 biilion respectively.

33. Losses arising from the derecognition of investment securities measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income

2021 2020
LBP'000 LBP'}00
Lebanese Government bonds - 89,576
- 89,576

During 2022, the Group sold shares with a nominal value of LBP 263 million, classified at fair value
through other comprehensive income, which resulted in net losses of LBP 90 million.

34. Net interest and other loss on investment securities at fair value through profit or loss

2022 2021
LBP'000 LBP'000
Interest income (net of withheld tax) 85,563 5,352
Dividends received 93,552 (184,030,219)
Net unreatized loss (15,300,009) -

(15,120,894)  (184,024,867)
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35. Other gperating expenses net

Multiplier factor costs (a)
Foreign exchange gain
Multiplier income

Rent income

Other income

2022 2021
LBP'000 LBP'000
(853,773) (8,152,236)
(77,602.819)  (36,748,357)
- 7,073,921
2,237,207 665,310
73,874 253,138
(76,145,511) _ (36,908,224)

(a) Multiplier factor costs represent amounts paid to depositors on fresh funds benefitting from the

multipher factor.

36. Staff costs

Salaries

Board of Directors remunerations (Note 46)
Sacial security contributions

Provision for end-of-service indemnities (Note 22)
Termination costs

Bonus and other staff benefits
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2022 2021
LBP'000 LBP'000
39,822,871 30,718,657

962,327 1,028,347
7,184,065 4,608,217
17,363,780 823,952
- 389,271
31,958,884 14,534,438
97,291,927 52,102,882
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37. General and administrative expense

2022 2021
LBP'000 LBP'000
Maintenance and repairs 6,818,971 8,237,688
Heat, light and power 11,725,036 5,622,982
Legal and professional fees 1,986,180 2,711,379
Credit card expenses 1,527,879 2,208,241
Fees and taxes 2,093,098 1,888,515
Electricity and water 2,193,795 1,678,710
Rent and building services 1,044,339 1,652,786
Subscriptions 2,131,091 1,176,636
Insurance 957,052 1,144,043
Public relations and entertainment 1,687,062 1,035,403
Cleaning 1,639,564 1,027,434
Telephone and postage 1,539,572 761,022
Security 709,767 722,282
Printing and stationary 427,513 535,531
Penalty fees - 405,000
Advertising and publicity 299,019 233,152
Money transport 7,019 254,122
Travel 70,211 44,624
Software implementation fees 43,506 42,603
Miscellanecus expenses 3,314,352 3,760,361

40,215,026 36,142,514

38. Financial instruments with off-balance sheet risks

The guarantees and standby letters of credit and the documentary and commercial letters of credit represent
financial instrements with contractual amounts representing credit risk. The guarantees and standby letters
of credit represent irrevocable assurances that the Group will make payments in the event that a customer
cannot meet 11 obligations to third parties and are not different from loans and advances on the statement
of financial position. However, documentary and commercial letters of credit which represent written
undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer authorizing a third party to draw drafts on the Group
upto a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions, are collateralized by the underlying shipment
documents of goods to which they relate and, therefore, have significantly less risks.

Forward exchange contracts outstanding as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 represent positions held for
customers' accounts. The Group entered into such instruments to serve the needs of customers, and these
contracts are fully hedged by the Group.

39. Fidueiary accounts

Fiduciary deposits include deposits invested in back-to-back lending and are related to resident lenders
and borrowers in addition to fiduciary deposits held or invested on behalf of the Group's customers on a
nondiscretionary basis. The risks and rewards of the related operations belong to the account holders,
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40. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand (Note 5)

Current accounts with Central Bank of Lebanon (excluding
compulsery deposits} (Note 5)

Term placements with Central Bank of Lebanon (with original
maturity of less than 3 month) (Note 5)

Current accounts with correspondents (Note 6)

Current accounts with related banks and financial institutions
{(Note 6)

Current accounts with the Parent Bank (Note 6)

December 31,

2022 2021
LBP'000 LBI'000

502,948,036 42,589,527
1,047,560,423 860,719,324
144,720,000 123,062,500
25,608,959 43,115,960
814,101 648,976

5,384,418 5,729,108

1,727,035,937 1,075,865,395

Major non-cash transactions excluded from the statement of cash flows for the years ended December 31,

2022 and 2021 are suminarized as follows:

a. Negative change in fair value of investments as at fair value through other comprehensive income of
LBP 444 million and related deferred tax liability of LBP 350 million (Negative change in fair value of
LBP 6 billion and related deferred tax liability of LBP 580 million during 2021).

b. Transfer from securities held at amortized cost and securities held at fair value through other
comprehensive income to fair value through profit or loss in the amount of LBP 226 billion and LBP

13billion respectively in 202].

41. Collateral given

The carrying values of financial assets given as collateral are as follows:

December 31,
2022 2021
Corresponding Facilites
Amount of Amount of
Pledged Maturity Amount of Nature FPledged
Assels Date Facility of Facility Assets
LBP'000 LBP000 LBP'000 LBP'000 LBP'00O
Certificates of Deposits Facilities from the
isued by the Central Bank of Central Bank of
Lebanon 7,943,789  June 9,2029 7,337,169 Lebancon 7,943,789
Central Bank of
Lebanese treaswy bills - Revolving - Lebanon 15,219,300
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42. Risk management

The Group is exposed to various types of risks. some of which are:
»  Credit risk: the risk of default or deterioration in the ability of a borrower to repay a loan.

* Liquidity risk: the risk that the Group cannot meet its finaincial obligations when they coine due in
a timely manner and at reascnable cost.

e Market risk: the risk of loss in balance sheet and off-balance sheet positions arising from
movements in market prices. Movements i market prices include changes in interest rates
(including credit spreads), exchange rates and equity prices.

¢ Operational risk: the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems, or from external events.

o Other risks faced by the Group include concentration risk, reputation risk, legal risk, political risk
and business/strategic risk.

The Board of Directors (the Board) is ultimately responsible for setting the level of acceptable risks to
which the Group s exposed, and as such, approves the risk appetite and policies of the Group. The Board
monitors the risk profile in comparison to the risk appetite on a regutar basis and follow-up on existing
and emerging risks. A number of Management committees and departments are also responsible for various
levels of risk management.

A. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in financial loss to the Group. Credit risk mainly arises from loans and advances to customers and other
banks (including related commitments to lend such as loan or credit card facilities), investments in
government debt securities, certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon and term deposits
with the Central Bank of Lebanon. The Group considers all elements of credit risk exposure such as
counterparty default risk, geographical risk and sector risk for risk management purposes.

Credit risk management

The Group's Risk Management committee is responsible for managing the Group’s credit risk by:

¢ Overseeing the risk management function as a whole.

e Ensuring that adequate policies and procedures governing the work of the risk management
function exist at all levels, are up to date at all times, and ensure the proper and timely identification
of risks that may put the capital of the Group at risk.

e Ensuring full compliance with laws and regulations related to risk management.

+ Following up on corrective measures proposed by the risk management function and approved by
the risk management committee.

s Qverseeing the work of sub-committees especially when it comes to pelicies and procedures.

s Relaying to the board of directors its assessment on the adequacy of the risk management frame
work as a whole.

» Reviewing the risk reports making sure to relay to the board of directors in due time identified
risks that may require a prompt attention/action.

¢ Validating all Risk related Policies, Business Continuity Policies, the Internal Capital Adequacy.

o Ensuring that the Group risk appetite and limits are properly understood and duly approved by
BOD.

e Ensuring that the Group has policies and procedures in place to appropriately maintain and validate
models used to assess and measure ECL.
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¢ Developing and mawntaining the Group's risk grading to categories exposures according to the
degree of risk of default. Risk grades are subject to regular reviews.

Significant increase in credit risk

The credit risk grades are designed and calibrated to reflect the risk of default as credit risk deteriorates.
As the credit risk increases the difference in risk of default between grades changes. Each exposure is
allocated to a credit risk grade at initial recognition, based on the available information about the
counterparty. All exposures are monitored, and the credit risk grade is updated to reflect current
information. The menitoring procedures followed are both general and tailored to the type of exposure.
The following data are typically used to monitor the Group's exposures:

s Payment record, including payment ratios and ageing analysis

« Extent of utilization of granted limit

» Forbearances (both requested and granted)

¢ Changes in business, financial and economic conditions

¢ Credit rating information supplied by external rating agencies.
The Group uses credit risk grades as a primary input into the determination of the term structure of the PD
for exposures. The Group collects performance and default information about its credit risk exposures
analyzed by jurisdiction or region and by type of product and borrower as well as by credit risk grading.
The information used is both internal and external depending on the portfolio assessed. The table below
provides a mapping of the Group's internal credit risk grades to external ratings.

Central Bank of Lebanon Central Bank of Lebanon Moody's Moody's
Risk Rating Description Grading Description

Excellent -

1 Normal 1-4 Satisfactory
Adequate -

2 Follow up 5-6 Marginal

3 Follow up and regularization 7 Vulnerable

4 Substandard 8 Substandard

5 Doubtful 9 Doubtful

6 Loss 10 Loss

The Group analyses all data collected using statistical models and estimates the remaining lifetime PD of
exposures and how these are expected to change over time. The factors taken into account in this process
include macro-economic, mainly Real GDP growth. The Group generates a 'base case' scenario of the
future direction of relevant economic variables as well as a representative range of other possible {orecast
scenarios. The Group then uses these forecasts, which are probability-weighted, to adjust its estimates of
PDs.

The Group presumes for retail foans that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since

initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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Incorporation of forward-looking information

The ECL model contains a three-stage approach which is based on the change in credit quality of financial
assets since initial recognition. The ECL modef is forward-looking and requires the use of reasonable and
supportable forecasts of future economic conditions in the determination of significat increases in credit
risk and measurement of ECL.

Measurement of ECL

The key inputs used for measuring ECL are:
e probability of default (PD);
* loss given defanlt (LGDY); and
e Exposure at default (EAD).

Commercial and retail lending

As explained above these figures are generally derived from intemally developed statistical
models and other historical data and they are adjusted to reflect probability-weighted forward-
looking information.

PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. It is estimated as at a point in time.
The calculation is based on statistical rating models and assessed using rating tools tailored to the various
categories of counterparties and exposures. These statistical models are based on market data (where
available), as well as internal data comprising both quantitative and qualitative factors. PDs are estimated
considering the contractual maturities of exposures. The estimation is based on current conditions, adjusted
to take into account estimates of future conditions that will impact PD.

LGD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into account cash ftows from any
collateral. The LGD models for secured assets consider forecasts of future collateral valuation taking into
account sale discounts, time to realization of collateral, cross-collateralization and seniority of claim, cost
of realization of collateral and cure rates (i.e. exit from non-performing status). LGD models for unsecured
assets consider time of recovery, recovery rates and seniority of claims. The calculation is on a discounted
cash flow basis, where the cash flows are discounted by the original EIR of the [oan.

EAD is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes in the
exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, and expected drawdowns
on committed facilities. The Group's modelling approach for EAD reflects expected changes in the balance
outstanding over the lifetime of the loan exposure that are permitted by the current contractual terms, such
as amortization profiles, early repayment or overpayment, changes in utilization of undrawn commitments
and credit mitigation actions taken before default. The Group uses EAD models that reflect the
characteristics of the portfolios.

The Group measures ECL considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual period (including

extension options) over which the entity 15 exposed to credit risk and not a longer period, even if contract
extension or renewal is common business practice.
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However, for exposures such as credit cards, revolving credit facitities and overdraft facilities that include
both a loan and an undrawn commitment component, the Group's contractual ability to demand repayment
and cancel the undrawn commitiment does not limit the Group's exposure to credit losses to the contractual
notice period. For such exposures the Group measures ECL over the peried that it 1s exposed to credit risk
and ECL would not be mitigated by credit risk management actions, even if that period extends beyond
the maximum corttractual period.

These exposures do not have a fixed term or repayment structure and have a short contractual cancellation
period.

However, the Group does not enforce in the normal day-te-day management the contractual right to cancel
these exposures. This is because these exposures are managed on a collective basis and are canceled only
when the Group becomes aware of an increase in credit risk at the facility level.

This Jonger period is estimated taking into account the credit risk management actions that the Group
expects to take to mitigate ECL, e.g. reduction in limits or cancellation of the loan commitment.

Groupings based on shared risks characteristies
When ECL are measured on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped on the basis of product

{ype.

The groupings are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that each group is comprised of homogenous
exposures.

Credit Risk monitoring and review
Since the last quarter of 2019, the severe and unprecedented economic situation in Lebanon exerted

significant pressure on the asset quality of the domestic loan portfolio. As a result, credit quality of the
Lebanese loan portfolio has declined driven by a weakening in the borrowers’ creditworthiness across
various segment types.
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[. Maximum exposure to credit risk

The foliowing corresponds to the maximum credit risk exposure net of the expected credit loss allowances:

Deposits with the Central Bank of Lebanon
(Note 5)

Deposits with banks and financial institutions
(Note 6)

Loans and advances to customers (Note 8)
Investment securities at amortized cost (Note
9

Investment securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income (Note 9)
Investment securities at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 10)

Other assets (Notel6)

Commitments and financial guarantees

December 31, 2022

Allowance for

Gross expected credit Net carrying
amounts losses amounts
LBP’ 000 LBP’000 LBP’000

2,507,259,824 (11,522,428)  2,495,737,396

31,807,478 (158,493) 31,648,985

707,770,389
1,594,858,305

(143,083,060)
(256,287,862)

564,687,329
1,338,570,443

38,090,653 (23,604,231) 14,486,422
68,061,104 - 68,061,104
37,807,560 : 37,807,560
4,985,655,313  (434,656,074) 4,550,999 239
58,782,342 (824,659) 57,957,683
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Deposits with the Central Bank of Lebanon
(Note 5)

Deposits with banks and financial institutions
(Note 6)

Loan to a bank (Note 7)

Loans and advances to customers (Note 8)
[nvestment securities at amortized cost (Note
9)

Investment securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income (Note 9)
Investment securities at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 10)

Other assets (Notel8)

Commitments and financial guarantees

December 31, 2021

Allowauce for

Gross expected credit Net carrying
amounts losses amounts
LBP’000 LBP?000 LBP’000

2,368,517,755

(7,700,342)

2,360,817,413

50,094,949

50,308,786 (213,837)
704,766 (13,320) 691,446
1,137,513,485 (154,613,106) 982,900,379
1,671,511,622  (140,369,213)  1,531,142,400
39,415,318 (20,615,990) 18,799,328
53,727,295 . 53,727,295
19,486,437 _ 19,486,437
5,341,185,464  (323,525,808)  5,017,639,656
43,716,283 (1,206,233) 42,510,050
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[1. Exposures subject to ECL

December 31,2022

Gross Exposures

Central Bank of Lebanon

Banks and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers
Investiment securities at amortized cosi
Investment securities at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Commitments and financial guarantees

Expected Credit Losses

Central Bank of Lebanon

Banks and financial institutions

Loans and advances to customers
Investment securities at amortized cosi
Investment securities at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Comritments and financial guarantees

Net Exposures

Central Bank of Lebanon

Banks and financial institutions

Loans and advances to customers
Investment securities at amortized cost
Investment securities at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Commitments and financial guarantees

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
LBP'00G LBP'DO0 LBP'000 LEP'000
- 2,507,259,824 - 2,507,259,824
31,807,478 - - 31,807,478
333,813,116 88,618,014 285,339,259 707,770,389
- 680,999,259 913,859,046 1,594,858,305
12,989,851 - 25,100,802 38,090,653
50,864,084 7,917,258 1,000 58,782,342
429,474,529  3,284,794,355 1,224,300,107 4,938,568,991
- (11,522,428) - (11,522,428)
(158,493) - - (158,493)
(1,292,645) (6,556,714)  (135,233,701) (143,083,060)
- - (256,287,862) (256,287,862)
- - {23,604,231) (23,604,231)
{47,681) {775,978) (1,000) (824,659)
(1,498,819) (18,855,120)  (415,126,794) {435,480,733)
- 2,495,737,396 - 2,495,737,396
31,648,985 - - 31,648,985
332,520,471 82,061,300 50,105,558 564,687,329
- 680,999,259 657,571,184 1,338,570,443
12,989,851 - 1,496,571 14,486,422
50,816,403 7,141,280 - 57,957,683
427975,71¢  3,265,939,235 809,173,313 4,503,088,258
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December 31,2021

Gross Exposures

Centra! Bank of Lebanon

Banks and financial institutions

Loan to a bank

Loans and advances to customers
Investment securities at amortized cosi
Investment securities at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Commnitments and financial guarantees

Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

LBP'00OD LBP'000 LBP'900 LBP'000
2,368,517.755 - - 2,368,517,755
50,308,786 - - 50,308,786
704,766 - - 704,766
559,044,410 281,399,560 297,069,515 1,137,513,485
928,426,04) - 743,085,581 1,671,511,622
14,314,516 - 25,100,802 39415318
31,827,463 11,888,820 - 43,716,283

3,953,143,737

293,288,380

1,065,255,898

5,311,688,015

Expected Credit Losses

Central Bank of Lebanon

Banks and financial institutions

Loan to a bank

Loans and advances to customers
Investment securities at amortized cosl
Investment securities at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Commitments and financial guarantees

Net Exposures

Central Bank of Lebanon

Banks and financial institutions

Loan to a bank

Loans and advances to customers
Investinent securities at amortized cost
[nvestment securities at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Commitments and financial guarantees

(7,700,342) - ; (7,700,342)
(213,837) - - (213,837)
(13,320) - - (13,320)
(5.954,861)  (24,215482)  (124,442,763) (154,613,106
- - (140,369,213)  (140,369,213)
- - (20,615,990) (20,615,990)
(255,284) (950,949) . (1,206,233)
(14,137,644)  (25,166,431)  (285,427.966)  (324,732,041)
2,360,817,413 - - 2,360,817,413
50,094,949 - - 50,094,949
691,446 - . 691,446
553,089,549 257,184,078 172,626,752 982,900,379
928,426,041 - 602,716,368 1,531,142,409
(4,314,516 - 4,484,812 18,799,328
31,572,179 10,937,871 - 42,510,050

3,939,006,093

268,121,945

779,827,932

4,986,955,974
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II. Movement of ECL

December 31, 2022

At January [, 2022

Deposits with Central Bank of Lebanon
Deposits with banks and financial mstitutions
Loan 10 a bank

[Loans and advances to customers
[nvesument securities at amortized cost
[nvestment securities at fair value through

other comprehensive income
Commitments and financial guarantees

Net charge for the year

Deposits with Central Bank of Lebanon
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Loan to a bank

Loans and advances to customers
Investment securities atr amortized cost
Investment securities at fair value through

other comprehensive income
Commitments and financial guarantees

Net transfers between stages

Deposits with Central Bank of Lebanon
Loans and advances to customers

Effect of exchange rates changes
Deposits with Central Bank of Lebanon
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers
Invesiment secirities at amortized cost
Comunitments and financial guarantees

At December 31,2022

Deposits with Central Bank of Lebanon
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers
[nwvestment securities at amortized cost

[nvestment securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Commitments and [inancial guarantees

Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
LBP'00D LBP'00O LBP'QCGO LBP'O0O
7,700,342 - 7.700.342
213,837 - - 213,837
13,320 - - 13.320
5,954,861 24215482 124 442,763 134,613,106
- - 140569.213 140,360213
i - 20,615,950 20,615,990
255,284 950,949 - 1,206,233
14,137,644 25,166,431 285,427,966 324,732,041
- 3,836,330 - 3.836,330
(53,344) - - (53,344)
(13,320) - - (13320
(4,222,120) (12,715,530 6,036,356 (10,901.254)
- - 115,918,651 115,918,65)
- - 2,988,241 2,988 241
{207,553) (174,971) 1,000 (381.524)
(4,496,337) {9,054,171) 124,544 248 111,393,740
(7,700,342) 7,700342 - -
(52,121) (4,943.240) 4,995,361 .
(7,752,463) 2,757,102 4,995361 -
- (14,244) - (14,244)
(2,000) - - (2,000}
(387,975} 2 (240,779) (628,752)
- - (2 -
_(50) g - {50
(390,025) (14,242) (240,779 {645,046)
- 11,522,428 - 11.522,428
158,493 - - 158,493
1,292,645 6,556,714 135,233,701 143,083,060
- - 256,287 862 256.287 862
- - 23604231 23.604.231
47.681 775978 1,000 824,659
1,498,819 18,855,120 415,126,794 435.480.733
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At January 1, 2021

Deposits with Central Bank of Lebanon
Deposils with banks and financial institutions
Loan to a bank

{_oans and advances {0 customers

[nvestment securities at amortized cost
Investment securities at fair value through

other comprehensive income
Commitments and financial guarantees

Net charge for the vear

Deposits with Central Bank of Lebanron
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Loan to a banlk

Loans and advances to customers
Investment securities at amortized cost
Customers’ liability under acceptances
Customers’ lability under acceptances

Net transfers betwecn stages
ioans and advances to customers
Commitments and fmancial guarantees

QOther transfers

Investment securitiss at amortized cost
Investment securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Recoveries related to financial assets sold

December 31, 2021

Customers' liability under acceptances
Commitments and financial guarantees

Effect of exchange rates changes
Deposits with Cenatral Bank of Lebanon
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Loan to a bank

LLoans and advances t¢ customers

At December 31, 2021

Deposits with Central Bank of Lebanon
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
L.oan to a bank

Loans and advances o customers
[nvestment securities at ameortized cost
Investment securities at tair value through

other comprehensive income

Commitments and financial guarantees

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
LBI'00G LBPooo L3000 LBP00O
3.402,320 - - 3,402,320
1,441,411 - - 1,441,411
26,674 - 26,674
22,696,339 22624454 121,736971 167,057,764
186,051 93,736,697 - 93,022,748
) 757306 - 757,306
250,685 112915 - 363,600
28,003,480 117,231,372 121,736,971 266,971,823
4311,694 - N 4311,694
(1,238,784) - - {1,238,784)
(15,136,139 - 4315677 (10,820,462)
(14,831) - 66,320,368 66,305,537
41 - - 41
844,525 - - 844 529
{11,233,490) - 70,636,045 59,402,555
(1,606,049) 1,591,028 (1,609,885) {1,624 906)
(839,930) 839,930 - .
(2,445979) 2430,958 {1,609,885) {1,624,906)
(171,220) (93,736,697) 74,049,233 (19,858,684)
- {757,306) 20,615,590 19,858,684
{171,220) (94,494,003) 94,665,223 -
(G20] - (41)
- (1,896} - (1,89
{41) {1.896) - (1,937
(13,672) - - (13,672)
15,210 - - 11210
(13,354 - - (13,354)
710 - (388) 322
{15,106) - (388 (15.494)
7,700,342 - - 7,700,342
213,837 - - 213837
13,320 - - 13,320
5,934,861 24215482 124,442,763 154 613,106
- - 140,369213 140,369,213
- - 20,615,990 20,615,990
255,284 950,949 - 1,206.233
14,137.644 25.166.431 285,427,966 324,732,041

84



BLC BANK S.A.L

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

Allocation of carrying amcunt of loans and advances to customers bv economic sector:

December 31,
2022 2021

LBP’ 000 LBP’600
Corporate:
Agriculture 15,347,831 22,337,008
Commerce 152,242,787 260,203,096
Constructicn and real estate 182,001,927 238,017,714
[ndividual 75,965,380 17,192,442
Industrial 31,090,194 49,393,665
Financial intermediaries - 3,448,763
Services 25,307,228 31,295,179

481,965,347 621,887,867
Retail loans 219,404,565 503,358,486
Accrued interest receivable 6,400,477 12,267,132

707,770,389 1,137,513,485

Netting arrangements:

The Group sometimes further restricts its exposure to credit losses by entering into netting arrangements
with counterparties. Netting arrangements reduce credit risk associated with favorable contracts to the
extent that if a default occurs, all amounts with the counterparty are terminated and settled on a net basis.

The Group makes use of master netting agreements and other arrangements not eligible for netting under
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation with its counterparties. Such arrangements provide for single
net settlement of all financial instruments covered by the agreements in the event of default on any one
contract. Although, these master nefting arrangements do not normally result in an offset of balance sheet
assets and liabilities (as the conditions for offsetting under IAS 32 may not apply), they, nevertheless,
reduce the Group's exposure to credit risk, as shown in the tables on the following pages. Although master
netting arrangements may stgnificantly reduce credit risk, it should be noted that the credit risk is
eliminated only to the extent of amounts due to the same counterparty.

IV. Risk Mitigation Policies
The Group mainly employs collateral to mitigate credit risk. The principal collateral types for loans and
advances are:

¢ Pledged deposits

» Mortgages over real estate properties (land, commercial and residential properties)

¢ Bank guarantees

Collateral generally is not held over loans and advances te banks, except when securities are held as part

of a reverse repurchase and securtties borrowing activity. Coltateral usually is not held against investment
securities.
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V. Financial assets with credit risk exposure and reiated concentrations

(a2} Exposure to credit risk and concentration by counterparty:

The tables below reflect the Group's exposure to credit risk by counterparty segregated between the
categories of deposits with banks and financial institutions and loans and advances:

(a.ly Distribution of deposits with banks and financial institutions by brackets (gross exposures):

Less than LBP S billion
From LBP 5 billion to LBP 15 billion
From LBP 15 billion to LBP 30 billion

Less than LBP 5 billion
From LBP 5 billion to LBP 15 billion
From LBP 15 billion to LBP 30 billion

December 31, 2022

Total Number of
Balance % of Total Counterparties

12,008,179 38 24
19,799,299 62 2
31,807,478 100 26
December31, 2021
Total Number of
Balance % of Total Counterparties
22,714,042 45 56
12,049,363 24 2
15,545,381 31 1
50,308,786 100 59

(a.2) Loans and advances to customers are aliocated as follows by brackets {gross expasures):

Less than LBP 500 million

From LBP 500 million to LBP 5 billion
From LBP 5 billien to LBP 15 billion
Above LBP 15 billion

Accrued interest receivable

December31, 2022

Carrying Number of
amount % of Fotal Counterpariies
312,355,144 45 41,357
119,855,435 17 186
107,011,598 15 13
162,147,735 23 10
701,369,912 100 41,566
6,400,477
707,770,389
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December i, 2021

Carrying Number of
amount % of Total Counterparties
LLess than LBP 500 miflicn 330,690,400 47 54,692
From LBP 500 million to LBP 5 billion 232,057,022 21 278
From LBP 5 billionto LBP 15 billion 129,673,829 12 16
Above LBP 15 billion 232,825,102 20 i1
1,125,246,353 100 54,997

Accrued mrerest recevable 12,267,132

[,137,513,485
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(a.4) Concentration of major financial assets and liabilities by geographical location:

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and Central Bank
Deposits with banks and
financial institulions
Investements at fair
value through profit or
loss

Loans and advances 1o
customers

Investment securities

FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks and
Financial institutions
Customers’ accounts
Borrowing from Central
Bank of Lebanon

Lease hability

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and Central Bank
Deposits with banks and

financial institutions
Loan to a bank
Investements at fair value
through profil or loss
Loans and advances to
customers

[nvesiment securities

FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks and

Financial institutions
Customers' accounts

Borrowing from Central
Bank ol Lebanon

Lease liability

December 31,2022

Middle East North
Lebanon and Africa America Europe Other Total

LBP'0GOO LBP'000 LBP'000
2,998,685,432 - - - - 2,998 683432
6,289,441 328,823 4,551,158 20,479,563 31,648,985
68,061,104 - - - - 68.061,104
346,355,779 15,063,789 1,100,162 1,747,805 415,794 564,687329
1,353,056,865 - - - - 1,333,036,863
4.972,448,621 15,392,612 3,651,320 22227368 419,794 5.016,139,715
102,139,538 133 - 185,494 - 102,325,165
3,567,536,675 447,892,989 75,807,100 118331,783 43,897,207 4.253,465,754
182,977,458 - - - 182,977.458
7,127,008 - - - - 7,127,008
3,859,780,679 447,893,122 75,807,100 118517277 43,857,207 4,545,895,385

December 31, 2021
Middle East North
Lebanon and Africa America Europe Other Total

LBP'0CO LBP'000 LEBP'000
2.403,406,940 - - - - 2,403 406,940
6,962,878 983,619 10,875,002 31,273,450 - 30.054.949
691,446 - - - - 691,446
53,127,295 - - - 53,727.295
945,783,453 30,851,550 2,568,923 2,984,424 711.989 982.900.379
1,549,941.737 - - - - 1.549.941.757
4.960.513.749 31.835.209 13.443.925 34.237.874 711.989 5.040.762 746
72.1435.437 £33 270.093 72.415.663
3.516,783,237 469.726.638 71.469.277 120,248.528 44.233.552 4.222.461.232
219.365.528 - - - 219.365.528
8.824.282 - - - - 8.824.282
3.817.118.484 466.726.771 71.469.277 120.518.621 44.233.532 4.323.0606.705
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B. Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its net funding requirements. Liguidity risk
can be caused by market disruptions or credit downgrades, which may cause certain sources of funding to
dry up immediately. That being said, Lebanon is facing adverse conditions and high level of uncertainty
since Ociober 2019, as a result of deterioration of the ecornomic environment which lead to a severe
disruption of normal business operations and the de-facto capital control, leading to incremental credit
risks and restricted access to foreign currency among other adverse factors.

1. Management of liquidity risk

Liquidity management involves maintaining ample and diverse funding capacity, liquid assets and other
sources of cash to accommodate fluctuations in asset and lLiability levels due to changes in their business
operations or unanticipated events. Through Assets and Liabilities Committee, the Board of Directors is
responsible for establishing the liquidity policy as well as approving operating and contingency procedures
and monitoring liquidity on an ongoing basis. The treasury department is responsible for planning and
executing their funding activities and strategy.

2. Exposure to liquidity risk

Regulatory requirements

The liquidity position is assessed and managed under a variety of scenarics, giving due consideration to
stress factors relating to both the market in general, and specifically to the Group. In Lebanon and since
October 2019 events, the Group monitors on a daily basis the ratio of available international foreign
currency liquidity to international commitments over various time hornizons.

The Central Bank of Lebanon, through its Basic circular 154 dated 27 August 2020, issued various
requirements aiming at restoring the normal banking operations in Lebanon to their pre-October 2019
levels. Among these requirements, Lebanese banks were requested to maintain total current account
balance with foreign correspondent banks {international liquidity that is free of any obligation) in excess
of 3% of the bank's total foreign currency deposits as at 31 July 2020 by February 28, 2021. On December
24,2020, the Banking Control Commission of Lebanon issued memo 18/2020 that centains guidance for
the calculation of this ratio. The Group has not yet met this regulatory international liquidity ratio, and
communication with the regulator is still ongoing to meet this ratio.

The table below shows the allocation of major monetary liabilities based on the earliest possible contractual
maturity (undiscounted values). The expected maturities vary significantly from the contractual maturities
namely with regard to customers' deposits.
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BLC BANK S.A.L

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended December 31, 2022

C. Market Risk

The market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will be affected
because of changes in market prices such as interest rate, equity prices, foreign exchange and credit

spreads.

Exposure to foreign exchange risk:

Below is the carrying value of assets and liabilities segregated by major currencies to reflect the Group's
exposure to foreign curency exchange risk at year end:

ASSETS:

Cash and Central Bank
Deposits with banks and
financial institutions
Investments at fair value
through profit or loss
Loans and advances to
customers

Investment securities
Assets acquired in
satisfaction of loans
Right-of-use assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets

Other assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits from banks and
financial institutions
Customers accounts
Other borrowings

Lease lability

Other liabilities
Provisions

Total Liabilities

Net assets

December 31,2022

LBP UusD Eure GRBP Other Total

LEP'G00 LBP'GOO LBP'O00 LBP'0OG) LBP'COO LBP000
1,122,409,777 1,756,257,693 119,022,067 995,895 - 2,998,685,432
3317,662 8,781,175 16,871,587 450874 2227687 31,648,985
1235275 66,825,829 - - ; 68,061,104
258,356,379 305232841 1,095,881 350 1,878 564,687,329
693,158,904 659,850,437 47433 - - 1,353,056,865
10,924,978 50,610,004 - - - 61,534,981
483,105 5,574,098 - - - 6,057,203
78,581,310 - - - - 78,581,310
1,719,184 - - - - 1,719,184
44,658 865 6,383,928 1,803 5,573 (3) 51,050,165
2,214,843 529 2.859,516,004 137,038,771 1,452 692 2,229,562 5,215,082 558
100,176.142 2.146,255 2,768 102,325,165
1,413,634,393 2672047359 162,070,759 3,005,717 2,707,326 4253 465,754
175.945,597 7031 861 - ; - 182,977,458
537,648 6,589,360 - - - 7,127,008
537,019,359 8,046,583 123,238 89 4035 65,189,674
48,216,077 8,455,744 851,749 - - 57,523,567
1795529216 2704317139 163,048514 3005806  2,707931 4 668,608 626
419316314 155.198.845  (26.009.743)  (1,553.114)  (478.369) 546.473.932
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BLC BANK S.A.L
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

December 31,2021

LBP USsD Euro CBP Other Total
LBP'OQ0 LBP'0O0O LBP'000 LBP'00G  LBP0O0 LBP'O0G
ASSETS:
Cash and Central Bank 602249137 [,677,060.320 122,986,878 1,110,605 - 2.403.406,940
Deposits with banks and
financial institutions 3,609,879 23,389,753 17,213,363 2,373,719 3.508233 50,094,949
Loan to a bank 691,446 - - - - 691,446
[nvestments at fair value
through profit or loss 1370421 52,356,874 - - - 53,727,295
Loans and advances 1o
CUSIOMETS 477346391 503,450,706 2,097,059 4473 1,750 082,900,379
investments at amortized cost 755,886,738 775,255,651 - - - 1,531,142,409
Investments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income 5,039,511 3,709,495 50,322 - - 18,799,328
Assels acquired in
satisfaction of loans 10,918,928 51,468,785 - - - 62,387,713
Right-of-use assets 801,907 7357713 - - - 8,159,620
Property and equipment 84,597,026 - - - - 84,597,026
Intangible assets 3,178,780 - - - - 3,178,780
Other assets 52,268,250 7,067,265 4.034 14,306 3,063 59356,918
Asset classified as held for sale 21,521,318 ~ - 21,921,318
Total assets 1,997.958.434 ULL,E06,562 164272976 3.503,103 3513046 5,280,364 121
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks and
financial institutions 69,694,302 2627452 93,909 - - 72,415,663
Customers accounts 1,218411,689 2.823.248,962 174,016,415 3417312 3366834 4,227 461,232
QOther borrowings 208,165,409 11,200,119 - - - 219,365,528
Lease liabiiity 913,791 7.910,491 - - - 8,824,282
Other liabilities 50,513,066 11,590,631 15,465,556 124 10,407 77,579,784
Provisions 31,424,566 1,761,196 1,191,085 - - 34,376,827
Liabilities associated with ) i 776,065 i i 776,065
assets as held for sale
1,579,122,823  2,85833885)  19i,543010 3417436 3377261 4,635,799.381
Net assets 418.835.611 232777714 (27.270.034) 85.667 135.785 644.564.740
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BLC BANK S.A.L
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

The Group is subject to currency risk ¢n financial assets and liabilities that are denominated in currencies
other than the Lebanese Pound. Most of these financial assets and liabilities are in US Dollars and Euras.
As disclosed in Note 1, the Group's assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are valued at the official
exchange rate, whereas there is high volatility and significant variance in the multiple unofficial exchange
rates in the parallel markets that have emerged since the start of the economic crisis and the de-facto capital
control on foreign currency withdrawals and transfers overseas, and therefore, management is unable to
determine what would be a reasonable possible movement in order to provide useful quantitative
sensitivity analysis.

The impact of the valuation of these assets and liabilities at a different rate will be recognized in the
financial statements once the official exchange rate is changed by the relevant authorities.

Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies presented in the tables above include onshore assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies that are subject to unofficial capital controls in Lebanon, which is further
explained in Note I. These are held by entities operating in Lebanon and will be realized/settled without
recourse to foreign currency cash and/ or foreign bank accounts outside Lebanon ("fresh funds"). Hence
these cannot be perceived to have an economic value equivalent to that of offshore forejgn currency assets
and liabilities and shouid be viewed and managed separately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended December 31, 2022

The tables below include segregation of onshore and offshore assets and liabilities in foreign currencies:

December31 ,2022

Onshore
Foreign Offshore
LBP cuirency foreign Currency Total
LBP000 LBP00G0 LBP'000 LBP'000
ASSETS:
Cash and Central Bank 1,122,409,777  1,860,496,038 15,779,617 2,998,685,432
Deposiis with banks and Financial
institions 3,317,662 3,010,638 25,320,685 31,648,985
Investments at fair vahue through profit or
loss 1,235,275 66,825,829 - 68,061,104
Loans and advances to customers 258,356,378 295,275,786 11,055,165 564,687,329
Investment securities 693,158,994 659,897,871 - 1,353,056,865
Assets acquired i satisfaction of loans 10,924,978.00 50,610,003 - 61,534 981
Right-of-use assets 483,105 5,574,098 - 6,057,203
Property and equiprent 78,581,310 - - 78,581,310
Intangdble assets 1,719,184 - - [,719,184
Other assets 44,658,865 6,391,300 - 51,050,165
Total Assets 2,214,845,528 2,948,081,563 52,155,467 5,215,082,558
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks 100,404,317 1,735,220 185,627 102,325,165
Customers accounts 1,413,634,381 2,279,327,263 560,504,110 4,253,465,754
Borrowing from Central Bank of Lebano 175,945,597 7,031,861 - 182,977,458
Lease liability 537,648 6,589,360 - 7,127,008
Other liabitities 57,019,359 8,144,950 25,365 65,189,674
Provisions 48,216,077 9,307,490 - 57,523,567
Total Liabilities 1,795,757,379 2,312,136,144 560,715,102 4,668,608,626
Net assets 419,088,149 635,945,418 (508,559,635) 546,473,932
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

ASSETS:

Cash and Central Bank

Deposits with banks and Financial
mstiutions

Loan to a bank

[nvestments at far value through profit or
loss

Loans and advances to customers
Investments securities

Assets acquired in satisfaction of boans
Right-of-use assets

Property and equiprnent

Intangble assets

Other assets

Assets classified as held-for-salke
Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits from banks

Customers accounts

Other borrowmngs

Lease liability

Other liabilities

Provisions

Liabilities associated with assets held for
sale

Total Liabilities

Netf assets

December 31, 2021
Onshore
Foreign Offshore
LBP cwirency foreign Cunvency Total

LBP'000 LBP'000 LBP000 LBP000
602,249,135  1,787,936,774 13,221,031 2,403,406,940
3,609,878 3,422,395 43,062,676 50,094,949
691,446 - - 691,446
1,376,421 52,356,874 - 53,727,285
477,346,253 490,990,475 14,563,651 982,900,379
760,926,269 789,015,468 - 1,549,941,737
10,918,927 51,468,786 - 62,387,713
801,907 7,357,713 - 8,159,620
84,597,026 - - 84,597,026
3,178,780 - - 3,178,780
52,246,612 7,110,306 - 59,356,918
- - 21,921,318 21,921,318
1,997,936,654 3,189,658,791 92,768,676 5,280,364,121
69,694,301 2,445,139 276,223 72,415,663
1,218,411,693 2,423,308,623 580,740,916 4,222.461,232
208,165,408 11,200,120 - 219,365,528
913,791 7,910,491 - 8,824,282
50,708,575 26,839,279 31,930 77,579,784
31,424,567 2,952,260 - 34,376,827
- - 776,065 776,065
1,579,318,335 2,474,655,912 581,825,134 4,635,799,381

418,618,319

715,002,879

(489,056,458}

644,564,740
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BLC BANK S.A.L
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended Decemnber 31, 2022

D. Other Qperational Risks

Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss or damage resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people, systems or external events, The Basel definition of operational risk includes legal risk, and excludes
reputational and strategic risks. Still, the failure of operational risk controls may result in reputational damage,
business disruptions, business loss, or non-compliance with {aws and regulations that can lead to significant
financial losses. Therefore, reputational and strategic risks are indirectly mitigated once the operational risks
acting as their key drivers are well managed.

The operational risk management framewaork is implemented by an independent Operational Risk
Management department that operates in coordination with other support functions such as: Corporate
Information Security and Compliance. The Internal Audit provides an independent assurance on the adequacy
and effectiveness of this framework through periodic reviews.

Operational risks are managed across the bank based on a set of principies and standards detailed in the Board-
approved operational risk management framework. These principles and standards include at a minimum:
segregation of duties, four-eye principle, and independency of employees performing controls,
reconciliations, and awareness. Controls are also embedded within systems and formalized in policies and
procedures.

Incidents are captured and analyzed to identify their root causes. Corrective and preventive measures are
recornmended to prevent future reoccurrences. Risk and Conirol Assessments {RCAs) are conducted on an
ongoing basis to identify risks and control vulnerabilities associated to existing or new operations, products,
processes, activities and systems. Key Risk Indicators are also developed continuously to detect alarming
trends. Recommendations to improve the control environment are communicated to concerned parties and
escalated to Management as deemed necessary.

Major incidents, RCA findings and operational losses are reported to the Board of Directors and Board Risk
Committees periodically as per the governance framework set in the bank Operational Risk policy.

Insurance coverage is used as an additional layer of mitigation and is commensurate with the Group business
activities, in terms of volume and nature,

E. Gther risks
Litigation Risk

Litigation risk arises from pending or potential legal proceedings against the Group and in the event that legal
issues are not properly dealt with by the Group. Litigation that may arise, whether from lawsuits or from
arbitration proceedings, may affect the operations of the Group as well as its results.

Since October 17,2019, and as a result of the de-facto capital control and other measures adopted by Lebanese
banks imposing various restrictions of free flow of customers’ funds deposited with the banking sector, the
Group has been subject to an increased litigation risk. Management is monitoring and assessing the impact of
potential litigation and claims against the Group in relation 10 these restrictive measures taking into
consideration prevailing taws, regulations and local banking practices.

Although there are uncertainties with respect to outcomes of any potential litigation in connection with the
adoption of the various restrictive measures, management considers that any associated claims, if any are
unlikely to have a material adverse impact on the financial position and capital adequacy of the Group.
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BLC BANK S.A.L
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

Political Risk

External factors which are beyond the control of the Group, such as pelitical developments and government
actions in Lebanon (note 1) and other countries may adversely affect the operations of the Group, its strategy
and prospects. Other important political risk factors include government intervention on the bank’s
activities and social developments in the countries in which the Group operates, political developments in
Lebanon, and the political and social unrest and political instability or military conflict in neighboring
cauntries and/or other overseas areas.

Given the above, the Group recognizes that unforeseen political events can have negative effects on the
fulfilment of contractual relationships and obligations of its customers and other counterparties which will
result in significant impact on Group’s activities, operating results and position.

43. Contingencies
Provisions for risk and charges includes provisions against tax contingencies, litigations and claims
whereby the Group is defendant in several lawsuits.

The Group 's tax returns for the years 2017 till 2022 inclusive are still subject to review by the relevant tax
authorities. Any additional tax liability depends on the outcome of such reviews.

The Group 's social security declarations since October 2017 remain subject to review by the Social
Security authorities. Any additional liabilities depend on the outcome of such reviews.

On June 7, 2021 a decision was taken by the Execution court in Metn to apply a conservative seizure on
the Bank’s movable assets in some of its branches as one of the customers has filed a lawsuit against the
Bank for an amount of USP1.4million and EUR259. The Bank has filed an opposition against the decision
on November 1, 2021 which is still pending before the court and also reguested to move the conservatory
seizure in counterpart of depositing a bankers check in LBP amounting to LBP 2.4 billion on December 6,
2021 but has been rejected by the court on April 11, 2022. The advance payment was recorded under
"sundry debtors” {Note 16).

On May 17, 2022 a decision was issued to expand the conservatory seizure to include property No. 4740
from Ashrafieh real estate area.

On June 6, 2022 the Bank deposited a bankers check in USD amounting to USD 1,5 million in order to
request to move the conservatory seizure which is still pending before the court.

44, Capital management

The adequacy of the bank’s capital is monitored using, among other measures, the rules and ratios
established by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BIS rules/ratios) as adopted by the Central
Bank of Lebanon, which is the lead supervisor of the bank.

Central Bank of Lebanon’s Intermediate circular 567, issued on 26 August 2020, introduced severa! key
changes in the calculation of regulatory capital adequacy ratios. These changes include:

»  Raising the regulatory expected credit loss level for Lebanese Government securities in foreign
currency and Lebanese government-related exposures in same currency from 9.45% to 45% and then
tater to 75%. Regulatory ECL. for other exposures remain unchanged.
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Type of financial instrument 2022 2021
Exposures to Central Bank of Lebanon in foreign currency 1.89 % 1.89 %
Exposures to Central Bank of Lebanon in ebanese Lira 0 % 0 %
Lebanese government securities in foreign currency 75 % 45 %
Lebanese governiment securities in Lebanese Lira 0 % 0%

»  Requesting banks to increase their own funds (capital) by an amount equivalent to 20% of their
common equity tier one capital as of 31 December 2018, through issuing new foreign currency capital
instruments, as well as other approaches that meet the criteria for inclusion as regulatory capital. The
deadline for raising capital was initially set at 31 Decemnber 2020 but was later extended for the
banking sector to 28 February 2021.

As discussed in note 23, the bank's extraordinary General Assembly of shareholders held on January
30, 2020 called additional cash contribution from shareholders in the amount of USD 93 86million.
Up to December 31, 2020 the banks shareholders settled USD 435, 96million (LBP 69.29 billion) in
the form of cash contribution with the remaining balance of USD47.8 million (LBF 72.2 billion) settled
in 2021,

»  Exceptionally during 2020 and 2021, allowing banks to drawn down the 2.5% capital conservation
buffer oncondition of rebuilding it progressively starting 2022 by 0.75% each year, to reach the
minimum required level of 2.5% by the end of 2024.

»  Prohibiting Lebanese banks from distributing dividends on common shares for the financial years
2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 as well as prohibiting banks from distributing dividends if capital adequacy
ratios drop below 7% for common equity tier 1, 10% for tier 1 and 12% for total capital (compared to
the regulatory minimum limits of 7%, 8.5% and 10.5% respectively, including a 2.5% capital
conservation buffer).

Exceptionally for 2020 and 2021, allowing Bank to include provisions for expected credit losses on stage
1 and 2 exposures, excluding those relating to Lebanese Sovereign and the Central Bank of Lebanon, under
regulatory Common Equity Tier | {previously only stage | allowances were included in Tier 2 capital, subject
to a 1.25% cap relative to Credit Risk Weighted Assets). Such provisions included under CET i should be
amortized by 25% yearly starting end of year 2022.
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» In October 2020, BCC issued a memo 15/2020 requesting from Banks to develop a roadmap to ensure
adherence to capital ratios and liquidity requirements, covering the years from 2020 to 2024. As per
the meme, the below minimum capital adequacy ratios are applied:

Ratio (%) 2021 2022 2023 2024
Minimum Capital Ratio (including the Capital Conservation BufTer)

Caommon Equity Tier [ / risk-weighted assets 4.50%  4.50% 5.25%  6.00% 7.00%
Net Tier 1 /risk-weighted assets 6.00%  6.00% 6.75%  7.50% 8.50%
Total capital / risk-weighted assets 8.00%  8.00% 8.75%  9.50% 10.50%
Provisions added to Capital equity Tier 1

Provisions taken on Stage 1 and 2 assets and

commitments except provisions taken

against L.ebanese Sovereign & Central Bank 100.00% 100.00% 75.00% 50.00% 25.00%

exposures, 1o be added to Common Equity Tier ]

In 2022, BCC issued an intermediate circular number 595 whereby it has lowered the risk-weight to be applied
on the Lebanese Corporate Resident Portfelio from 150% to 100%. The impact is minor on the bank’s capital

adequacy ratio.

The Group 's capital adequacy ratio was as follows:

Common Equity Tier |
Additional Tier | capital

Ter Il capital
Total regulatory capital

Credit risk

Market risk

Operaticnal risk

Risk-weighted assets and risk-weighted off-balance sheet items

Equity Trer | ratio
Tier [ capital ratic
Risk based capital ratic - Tier [ and Tier Il capital

December, 31

2022 2021

LBP Million LBP Million
405,758 518,368
152,787 152,787
558,545 671,655
5,988 7,924
568,533 679,579
3,028,580 3,758,205
284,041 105,796
333,812 317,313
3,646,433 4,181,314
11.13% 12.41%
15.32% 16.06%
15.59% 16.25%

The Bank's capital adequacy ratio as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, similarly to other applicable
regulatory ratios, was calculated based on the disclosed figures, and did not take into consideration the
adjustments that will result from the uncertainties discussed under Note 1.3 once these uncertainties

become reasonably quantifiable.
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Due to the high levels of these uncertainties, management i1s unable to estimate in a reasonable manner,
the impact of these matters on the Group ‘s capital adequacy and the recapitalization needs that may arise
once the necessary adjustments are determined and recorded.

45. Fair value of financial assets and lLiabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

+ In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
+ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumpticns that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumnstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value Is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair measurement as a whole:

« Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

o Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

s Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whale)
at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disciosures, the Group determines classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the fevel of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

As a result of the unprecedented levels of uncertainty surrounding the economic crisis that Lebanon, and
particularly the banking sector in Lebanon, is experiencing, as described in Note |, management is unable
to produce reasonable estimation of the fair value of financial assets and liabifities concentrated in Lebanon
as the measurement of their fair value is either {i) dependent on prices quoted in a market that is severely
tnactive and illiquid; or (3i) determined using cash flow valuation models using observable market inputs,
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comprising of interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads that are not reflective
of the economic reality and market conditions.

In the absence of reliable data, the Group did not disclose the fair value of financial assets and liabilities
originated in Lebanon as required by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements.

46. Related party transactions

Related parties represent the Parent Group, subsidiaries, key management personnel and their close family
members, and entities controlled or jointly controlied by them. In the normal course of business, the Group
has dealings at market rates, or on terms agreed by the management of the Group with related parties.

Below are balances and transactions with related parties included in these consolidated financial
statements:

December 31,
2022 2021
LBP’000 LBP?000

Deposits with related banks

Current accounts with Parent Bank (note 6) :

Fransabank S.A.L. 5,384,418 5,729,108

Current accounts with related banks and financial institutions

{note 6) :

Fransa Invest Bank S.AL 628,664 447,610

Fransabank France S.A. 185,437 201,366
Interest income from deposits with related banks 1,026 -
Loans and advances to related parties — Board members and key
management

Loans and advances (Note 8) 9,648 3,658,599
Interest income from loans and advances to related parties 19,413 143,374
Deposits from related banks (Note 18)

Current deposits - subsidiaries :

Short term deposits from parent bank-Fransabank S.A.L - 67,000,000

Accrued interest payable {23,288 2,434,626
Interest expense on deposits from related banks (Note 29) 2,245,794 8,291,933
Retated parties’ customers’ deposits — Board members,
key mapagement and related company (Note 19)

Demand deposits 2901612 8,897,710

Term deposits 60,448,091 58,185,556

Coliateral against loans and advances 505,719 79,144

Accrued interest payable 161,167 302.831
Interest expense on customers’ deposits from related parties il 3,102.985
Board members remunerations {Note 36)

Board of Directors remuneration fees 881,927 047,947
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47. Subsequent events

i) As mentioned in Note |, in February 2023, the Central Bank of Lebanon changed the official published
exchange rate from LBPL,507.5 to LBP1S,000 to the US Dollars. The Bank applied the new rate of
LBP15,600 in its subsequent financial infermation reporting, with the first period being the reporting as of 31
March 2023.

i) On May 17, 2022 the Group signed the sale purchase agreement of BLC Finance SAL for a total
consideration of USD 225,000 plus LBP 8.75 billion.

On April 3, 2023 the Central Bank of Lebanon approved the disposal of the eatire shares of ali the
shareholders of BLLC Finance SAL.

48. Approval of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022 were approved by the Board
of Directors in its meeting held on July 5, 2023.
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